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CORPORATE INFORMATION AT &%
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AT &%

Place of Incorporation

Hong Kong

Registered Office

21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate,
Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong

Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Hongkong Managers and Secretaries Limited
Unit 3401-2, 34th Floor, AIA Tower,
183 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong

Internet Websites

Lam Soon Hong Kong Group
http://www.lamsoon.com

Haomama.com Club

http://www.haomama.com

Detergent Business
http://www.love2clean.com

Edible Oil Business

http://www.lamsoonoil.com

Flour Business
http://www.hkflourmills.com

Lam Soon e-Bidding
http://ebidding.lamsoon.com

Hong Leong Group
http://www.hongleong.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS AR =

Turnover (continuing operations)) (HK$ million)
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS A=

Consolidated Results

mEEE

Year ended 30 June
BEAA=THILEEE

(HK$ million) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(B¥EET) == —Z——F Z—T-TF —BBhE ZFENF
Continuing operations FECEER
Turnover =E 0 2,889 2,510 2,193 2,072 2,094
GP% ER= 13% 18% 20% 20% 16%
(Loss)/profit before taxation — BBiAl (E518), S5l (27) 113 143 97 112
Taxation BEXH (9) (22) (21) (18) (11)
(Loss)/profit for the year from REEFELE

continuing operations EREEN(EE)/

gl (36) 91 122 79 101

Discontinued operation BRIEEER
Profit for the year from a REFERIELEE

discontinued operation EREENER - - - - 6
Net gain on disposal of a HEDKRIERE

discontinued operation 3= - = = = 9
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(FE), R8T (36) 91 122 79 116
Non-controlling interests FERER - - - - 2
(Loss)/profit attributable AT

to shareholders of the B e (B518),

Company Pt (36) 91 122 79 118
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS A=

Consolidated Assets and Liabilities

GEEERERE
At 30 June
BRARB=+H
(HK$ million) 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
(B EETT) =l —E——F  —E-TH —TERE ZBENF
Total assets BEE 2,146 2,082 1,812 1,682 1,738
Total liabilities HER (728) (597) (413) (375) (466)
Non-controlling FERERR RS
interests (11) (11) (11) (11) (17)
Equity attributable to AAT
shareholders of the R
Company i 1,407 1,474 1,388 1,296 1,255
Key Financial Indicators
FERBIEE
Year ended 30 June
BEAA=THLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
S DS Sz —F  —3-3F  —FThE  —FINA
(Loss)/earnings per share SR (EE)BF
(HK$) (&) (0.15) 0.38 0.50 0.32 0.49
Dividend per share (HK$) ~ SRRE(ET) 0.08 0.16 0.16 0.15 0.15
Equity-debt ratio BEREEHE 100:0 96:4 100:0 100:0 100:0
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EE=E& I FiREE

| present herewith our annual report for the financial year ended
30 June 2012.

The Group had achieved sales growth primarily from continued
efforts through our recently expanded sales network in China.
Our Detergent Segment showed lower profit but it was a difficult
year for our Food Segment with Edible Oil pulling through and
Flour hard hit by exceptional market conditions in that sector,
notably in the second half of the year. This resulted ultimately in

the Group suffering an overall loss for the year.

We have taken remedial actions aimed at improving overall
productivity, and adjusted our Flour business strategy to address

prevailing market conditions and industry competition.

Overview

In the past year, global major economies faced unprecedented
stress in their financial systems that are still ongoing. Market
conditions in all sectors were generally uncertain. In China
where our main market is, consumption growth slowed while
cost inflation and price-cutting competition prevailed. Rising
raw material and labour costs could not be off-set by higher
selling prices due to price-control and fierce price-cutting by
competitors seeking bigger market share. Hardest hit by this
adverse external market factors was our Flour business which
at the same time was nearing the completion of a substantial
capital expansion for new production plants to supply to strategic
regions of China’s major consumption centres.

AANEESBE-E-—FAA=+ALHR
FEZER -

FEEFEEBFASNBROBBR ZTE
HERARUBRHEER - RMANEFEARD
BEBSBANTR  EXAFEHRADIIBMER
ME - BRARRHERAR  TRENTE
ﬂ'JlZI%i%E’J%%'ﬁ?RWEﬂ%  BRAFET

EAREE SHARERABERFEE
A -

EFERRERTEH  EEXERBEED
I B IR AP R JEHD 375 SR e LA Bl B IR AT T 5 iR
MRATEPET ©

#E

RBEFE  2RFIELERRABEFERYHS
BERMARAAARENRD - FOHNTRE
BABEME KMNEERS PR THEHEHE
BENRMEERALRAEERBERITHNS

R HRERZEFHNESREATSHENR
FHFREHE RSEETTREEERME
RIERALA - EFFNIIBHEREZY
EZFPNENEBERNEARITE » BN ERE
FEEREEBNERERBEZ B ZR
WA HEZPEETEHEPOMENREE o

AXE‘%EI."E
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT E XS FiREE

Overview (continued)

Notwithstanding the uncertain macroeconomic conditions, we
are encouraged by the foundation laid in the past several years in
our production infrastructure and distribution network expansion
in China. These investments should yield results as the global
and Chinese economies gradually rebound. In the meantime, we
will strive to optimize utilization of our increased flour production
capacity by developing and adding the mid-range and
commodity flour segments to increase our productivity. We have
the benefit of our established high product/service quality and
safety standards to differentiate our products from competition
at different price-segments of the flour business.

Financial Results

Turnover was HK$2,889 million, representing 15% growth versus
last year. Gross profit was HK$390 million or 13.5% of sales but
the Group recorded a net loss of HK$36 million compared to a
net profit of HK$91 million last year.

Notwithstanding the loss suffered this year, the Directors
are recommending to the shareholders for approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting a final dividend of HK$0.08
per share. No interim dividend was declared this year (2011:
interim dividend of HK$0.06 per share and final dividend of
HK$0.10 per share). This represents halving of the total dividend
of HK$0.16 per share paid last year.

We continued to maintain strict financial discipline in inventory
management and capital expenditure, and recorded a net
cash position of HK$104 million at 30 June 2012 after partial
settlement of our investment costs in new production capacity as
compared with a net borrowing of HK$57 million last year.

BIE =)

BERZELSERRTAYE  RADREEER
RECRBELFEEERURDE D HHEK
BUERMRAEHEE - ZEREFREHREH
HEEZES RERREKRR - B ZFASHR
NEBBRRIBRTAE R E R D P AN
EE HURERSHEMOEBMNENEEN
FMAXE -HRERMEBYSER BEEER
ZE2RE BEFEZIRRMANEREEY
TEIEERAHNHFFHAmMD o

CPpEE

& EFEABH2889,000,0007T F BMEFHER
15% o & F A& 7% # 390,000,000 7 » {h & % 48
13.5% » BN B $£ 15 F E518 8% 36,000,000
7T o A BlER 1SR B 91,000,000 7T ©

HMANFEEREEE EESENRERRRA
FESIARRES  HERERERESR
BHEOOST e AFEEWESKFHERE(ZE
——F  FHRESRER 006 TRAREEKEE
FRABOIORT) BEZREA L —FEIR
BRREMEE  SRB¥O16TTZ— ¥

AMEGFEEEREAMY FHEEETEER
EERA R=ZE——FXA=+H X
HEENBIBRENLE  AEEZHEEFHE
£ B ¥104,000,0007T > MEFAAEFFEE
#8557 000,000 7T °
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT EE & FiREE

Business Review

Faced with constraints on increasing our selling prices to mitigate
wheat cost hike which was most felt in the third quarter and cost
increase in peanut oil, our Food Segment suffered a loss with
Flour taking the brunt of it. However, we continued to see stable
sales growth in revenue from our core brand food products such
as Flour’s Golden Statue and American Roses, and Edible Oil's
Knife and Red Lantern. For Detergent, our well-known brand
of AXE and Labour showed an overall 10% sales growth with
satisfactory profit margin.

When construction of our new flour mill in Qionglai in Western
China is completed at the end of 2012, we will have strategically
a flour production centre in each of China’s important regions.
While our main focus will continue to be the premium-priced
segment to ensure profitable growth, we will not overlook the
mid-range and commodity flour products to take advantage of

our increased production capacity.

Outlook

While growth rate in China is slowing as of late, it continues to
show an enviable GDP growth of 7.6% in mid 2012 when the
other major economies were struggling to stay out of recession.
With the continued rise of consumption power and standard of
living, we are primed to benefit from the rising demand for higher
grade staple products with our premium brand name and safety
record.

F kA

PNEERRE=ZZHBERMIELEBRAETE
Frigin - ERREMEASSEUREKAR
HFEZIRE  EFRMVERIBRZE
B MENEXEEERT - A > RAHK
CDRERREEZSREHERSARR WIS
B TEHRIEEHURITIE]-TAR ER
R ZERBEZARAE  RAZEBNNFE
RIET EERRBESI10%HELRRER
EF e

EHEARPERDRZNFEDER - —=
FERERE  RMUEERRRAT  EHE
EEERHEHERENEEDL - BERM
BRHEKIZERRUESEER D PUAER
BAER  BEMATTER2RFAACRAERE
NEZRRTERERAENER °

R

BETENEREELPAMKE  EEHM
FELBRERDEZSNEERERNEE - PEH
BANEERER -2 _FFPNBRESAR
FH76%ER BEBEIREFTEZTE
BA - HELAIEBOFIRESTEZM - &M
NEEREEBRRFZERCBEETRRMZ
HHp o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT EE&FREE

Outlook (continued)

However, rising costs throughout the value chain will continue
to put pressure on profit margin and remain the culprit for an
inflationary environment. Under the circumstance, the Group
will need to address these challenges and protect our profit
margin while growing our volume and revenue. In our state
of preparedness, we will emphasize further on ongoing cost
rationalisation, organization rightsizing, improved productivity,
inventory/spend management, operational efficiency, and R&D
initiatives.

Despite all the external market conditions and evolving health-
safety requirements, the Group will not compromise its product
safety and quality. This has been our hallmark over our 50
years heritage, which is central to our reputation as an industry
leader as evidenced by all the rewards of recognition received

consistently over the years.

As we near inauguration of our new flour production site in
Western China, existing sites are poised to gear up for increased
capacity to meet the rising demand of our products in all regions
of China. The China National Association of Grain Sector has
confirmed our current ranking as number five in the top fifty
flour mills in China. We have noted that the PRC Government
had issued a directive in December 2011 requiring new foreign
investments in the flour sector to be subject to government
review and approval. This would have the effect of limiting future
growth in flour production capacity in the short term. As we are
near to the completion of our capacity expansion plan, we could
stand to benefit from this market supply and demand situation in
the coming years ahead.

BE @)

A BEEBASREOOKATE L - S
BREMVANBERED  FREXBIRN
FEH - #BBERT AKERKTEHHES
B UFERREAHERBANERRER
e EEBITFNRR  RABEMZERS
FEAEL ABRBREEREL  £EIR
B FE/BXEE  §ERERMEE -

BENBHTARERBELZZERTEEE -
FEEUERREREEETEZN  EREM
BESOFREANTE » FERFERITERE
ENBRENROEER  RMNEFREEEEE
ERARAR B

HREMATEES L ENHTENEERFEE
mEk  BELERECHFFERBRAERR
UEREETEEHHEMERTH EANTER -
TEEBRITEHERR  AKERSEHTE
At+REMBHEIER - RMAZPEBA
ER-ZF-——F+ZRABBES  REENT
ENFBMNREYABBRAEFEELE - It
HHERNEHARHEN ERNWARRER - B
RERBRRAEC KT » RO THREKLE
FHHEHRFLEHZE -
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT E XS FiREE

Outlook (continued)

For our Edible Oil and Detergent businesses, we will look into
penetrating regions outside of our historically strong South.

Besides our capital investments in production capacity and
nationwide sales network, we have and will continue to upgrade
and develop our personnel in all disciplines of our business in
order to achieve sustainable growth and enhance our competitive
advantages.

With our recent management reorganization and right-
sizing exercise under a new Group Managing Director and
supported by new product innovations and distributorships for
all our businesses, we are better geared for a challenging but
encouraging year ahead.

Appreciation

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all our customers,
business partners, bankers, and stakeholders for their support
especially during such a challenging year. To our management
and staff, | would like to express my gratitude for their continued
dedication, hard work, and team spirit. | appreciate greatly
also the contribution and advice given by Board members.
With persistence, hard work, and strategic planning, we aim to
maintain and enhance the Group’s mission as a provider of high
quality and safe products for a healthier and more delightful life.
We look forward to moving ahead in tandem with an improving
China market.

KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 August 2012

FREE (&)
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £E4=
CORPORATE EVENT £E;E&)

Knife High Oleic Series - Official Sponsor of Hong Kong Cycling Team for Hong Kong National
Road Championship & Hong Kong Road Cycling Race - June 2012

NNEERAY - EREERARFNEE A AREEREREEEAREEF 2T REYH - 201256 A

Distributor Seminar (Eastern China) Shanghai - June 2012
ERENEFESH - LB - 201256 A
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £E4 =
CORPORATE EVENT HEE;E&)

Mother's Day Luncheon - May 2012
B E - 201258

13

Premix Flour Seminar (Macau) - May 2012

Bk R TEH % 0k R EE (GRPT) - 2012558
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £E4=
CORPORATE EVENT £E;E&)

Chongqing Hong Kong Shopping Festival - January 2012
EE o HEEYE - 20125F1 A

Hong Kong Brands and Products Expo 2011 - December 2011
011 EEEETRE - 20115124
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £E4 =
CORPORATE EVENT £E;E&)

Knife - Sponsor of World Heart Day 2011 - October 2011
7es - #5.06B 2 &8 - 2011FE10A

[ TS R

Outdoor Promotion - August 2011
BipEREEE) - 20118 A
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £E4=

Honour and Awards 255 BiH8IH

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited was granted “Consumer Caring

Company” in 2011 by GS1 Hong Kong

Cortifate of Kocognetinn

2011 FRIE (B EB)BRADET BE MR H SRR B0 R

L i [ Voo W} L

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited was recognised as “2012 Food Safety Entrusted
Enterprise in Catering and Bakery Business” by Guangdong Province Restaurant

Association

R (&) BR A AR BRI TR R R 2012 MR A BREBERAR
REWIELK '

Lam Soon Hong Kong Group was ranked “The Top 50 Wheat Flour Enterprises 2011 in China”

by The China National Association of Grain Sector

FIEEBEEETERRITEHRSIA2011 FEPBNEMMITLHE5058 12—
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS £E4 =

Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mill Limited was honoured “Brand A Enterprise in

Food Safety Standard” by Government Authorities of Wuxi, Jiangsu Province

THEIEENARADEIHEESTRAEVERBRRZ2EAARLE]

Golden Statue Wheat Flour was ranked “Shenzhen Famous Brand” by Shenzhen Famous

Brand Evaluation Committee

SEENERERINERETEZESTR RYAE R ]

Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare Products Limited was presented

e ]

Green Medal of “Pearl River Delta Environment Awards” by L)

I
o= 8Ee

b

L
o

|

Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Hang Seng Bank

FREEE B T BEEE B e i e

Tren Crrtsuinte o crrarr=td 1

Gamrgrivie Lamioon somecars Produrn Lis

ENEIEE 2R R ERA TS T LR e R EARTER %A ANSEBERANRSS
QKR | -
o em- o

“Knife” and “AXE” were awarded “Consumer’s Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands
2011” by China Enterprise Reputation & Credibility Association (Oversea)
TNERFEEEFE (BN DECBHERR20MFEREEESRMME

— -
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 55 ElEa
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 55 [El1Ea

Operations Review

Though world wheat prices traded lower between October 2011
and June 2012, wheat prices in Mainland China did not in fact
follow suit till March 2012. As a result, the Group only benefited
from lower wheat prices in the last financial quarter. Edible QOil
raw material costs, except for peanut oil, were lower for the
financial year and essentially followed world market prices.
However, because peanut oil accounts for a meaningful portion
of our Edible Oil business, we could not reap the full benefit of
such a cost decline.

Food Segment

Food Segment consists of our Edible Oil and Flour businesses.
The Segment achieved 16% sales growth to HK$2,506 million.
However, operating profit decreased by HK$128.5 million versus
a year ago and suffered a loss mainly due to our price increases

not being able to offset cost increases of wheat.

Our Edible Qil business continued to grow, riding on a health
platform that enriches the well being of our consumers,
especially the younger generation with our Omega 3 series.
Our ongoing endorsement from Hong Kong College Cardiology
as Recommended Healthy Oil of World Heart Day, Hong Kong
Cycling Team, and the numerous quality awards received in
Hong Kong and the Mainland speak volumes about our high
quality standards. In the new financial year, opportunity for
growth in the Mainland lies within and beyond our historically
strong South region. We will be more focused in developing the
unexplored regions outside of South China while growing further

our existing markets.

ZEF5mER

BARAERPEERR-ZE——F+REZF
—ZFXABTE  EHERNENNEERE
“E-CHF=-RAKARABREDT o Hit » &K
SEERE-—EFRFEREZERN/NEER
TEROSE - RIEL M - EtbRAHREM
HRARAVHFELIR TR > HERZHRS
SEREY - AT AREERMREMRAHK
ERPEEELE  SEMRETEZIERR
AT FEFROEE ©

R 5 8B

BOBEERABRENEL - Zo IE
16% 88 & 1% & £ 8 % 2,506,000,000 JT °
A RERFEEFER A B % 128,500,000
T WEREEE TERRAEREEWREFA
REGIREH/ DB R A M FHIE o

®
5

AEEUREFER/EHN BRAERITEAR
BURE BRIERHHFE-—RKNERXMIA
P SRAMBXEBEELR - RMANRRAME
BETBOEENSZREN B0 A #E
B MEBSEEREEERNAR  URRE
BRABESZEEEAR  EUAFRBRMR
FHENmEER - RF—EMBEFE - B—H
DURBRERRNER TSI BREMBEDY
BRERRE RE-—SBERBEEMSEN  BF
EEETRARER UMM AR LR

Wi o
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 55 ElEa
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS ¥F£[OIEE

Operations Review (oniinveq) TSGR )
Food Segment (continued) BEDE (&)
Amid fierce competition and material, labour, and logistic cost RAFHEE  TH5HBHEZ BE - AR

increases during the financial year, margin of our Flour business MREALR SEHNEBENABE-—FZ
was squeezed. Although overall volume growth stalled, our core B RBRBEEERME B UEEER

premium segment continued to record healthy volume growth. HEEHESRESRELR - RMABSHES T -
While we will continue to focus on this fast-growing segment, MESFRBENIY  TERREROIERERE
we will also place more emphasis on maximizing our production MENERNEREZRS

capacity with the mid-range and commodity flour products.

Turnover - Food Segment (HK$ million) Profit/(loss) from operations — Food Segment (HK$ million)
EXH - ARoE¥EET) e, (BE) - BRRIBCEEKFET)
2,600 140
2,400
2,200 2,161 120
2,000 100
1,800
1,600 80 21
1,400
60
1,200
1,000 40
800
600 20
400 0
200 ©)
0 2011 2012 (20) 2011 2012
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© AXEClear ERE 2B —WEXENSF
(National Sanitation Foundation International)

RAZZRAMBRT2RARRN
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS % F&[CIEE

Operations Review (continueq)
Detergent Segment

Detergent Segment achieved 10% sales growth to HK$376
million, but margin experienced a slight decline amid material
and labour cost increases. With intense competition in the
detergent industry, rising labour, marketing/promotional costs,
and the Urban Maintenance and Construction tax hike in China,
Detergent Segment profit decreased by HK$6.8 million to
HK30.9 million.

During the financial year, our AXE brand had several new product
introductions both in the Hong Kong/Macao and China markets,
achieving satisfactory sales growth. In the new financial year, we
will continue to grow our already strong South China business by
intensifying the outlet penetration in tier two and three cities. At
the same time, we will increase our effort in developing regions
outside of the South with both our AXE and Labour brands.

Turnover - Detergent Segment (HK$ million)
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Financial Review
Group Results

For the year ended 30 June 2012, the Group’s turnover
increased by HK$379 million to HK$2,889 million. Owing to the
rapid increase in raw material costs, our margins decreased from
18% to 13%.

In order to support the growth in sales, the selling and
distribution expenses grew by HK$39 million or 15%, to HK$297
million. The increase was primarily attributable to the selling
and marketing expenses for new market development, and the
additional costs for oil business in Hong Kong and Macau taken

back from Evergreen in 2nd half of the year.
Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 30 June 2012, the Group had a net cash balance of HK$104
million (2011: net borrowing of HK$57 million). This was mainly

attributable to the decrease in inventory level.

At 30 June 2012, the Group had a cash balance of HK$451
million (2011: HK$171 million). About 84% of these funds were
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), 8% in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKS$”"), 7% in United States dollars (“USD”) and 1% in Macau
Pataca (“MOP”) respectively.

At 30 June 2012, the Group had HK$625 million committed bank
facilities (2011: HK$611 million) of which HK$347 million (2011:
HK$228 million) was utilized. All bank borrowings carried interest
at floating rates and were repayable within 1 year.

The Group centralises all the financing and treasury activities at
corporate level. There are stringent controls over the application
of financial and hedging instruments which can only be employed
to manage and mitigate the price risk of commodities for trade

purposes.
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Financial Review (continued)
Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

At 30 June 2012, the inventory turnover days were 86 days
(2011: 145 days). Lower raw material level was kept to ensure
faster turns in the volatile commodity market. The trade
receivable turnover days remained at a healthy level of 28 days
(2011: 23 days).

In view of the strong liquidity and financial position, management
believes the Group will have sufficient resources to fund its daily
operations and capital expenditure commitments.

Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group has operations in Mainland China and Hong Kong.
Local costs and revenue are primarily denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong dollars. All the Group’s borrowings were
denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales,
purchases and deposits that are denominated in currencies other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
Details of the foreign currency exposure of the Group are set out
in note 5(d) to the financial statements.

Net exchange gain for the year is set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.

Capital Expenditure
During the year, the Group invested a total sum of HK$109
million on acquisition of land use right and plant equipment, and

construction of new factory building.

Details of the capital expenditure commitments are set out in
note 34(a) to the financial statements.
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Financial Review (continued)
Contingent Liabilities

Details of the contingent liabilities are set out in note 35 to the

financial statements.
Human Resources and Training

As at 30 June 2012, there were approximately 1,436 employees
in the Group. Annual increment and year-end performance bonus
mechanism were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration policy
to retain, reward and motivate individuals for their contributions
to the Group. The Company also operates a Share Option
Scheme for granting of options to eligible employees. During the
year, no option was granted under the Share Option Scheme.
8,000,000 options granted to the then Group Managing Director
and certain eligible employees were lapsed during the year.
Accordingly, the number of outstanding options was 10,150,000
at 30 June 2012.

Relation with Shareholders and Investors

The Company encourages two-way communication with its
stakeholders. Extensive information about the Group’s activities
is provided in the Annual and Interim Reports, which are sent to
shareholders. The Group also maintains a number of websites
to provide a wide range of information on the Group and its
businesses.

Relation with Community

During the year, the Group continued to support a wide spectrum
of community services targeting the needy in Hong Kong, the
Mainland China and beyond. The Group had supported the
activities organised by The Better Hong Kong Foundation and
had participated in the Community Chest Walk for Millions.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE EE&1\

Kwek Leng Hai

Aged 59, is the Chairman of the Company since October
2006 and has been a Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Kwek is also the
Chairman of Board Nomination Committee and a member of

Board Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Mr. Kwek is a director and shareholder of Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), the ultimate holding company of
the Company. He is the President, CEO of Guoco Group Limited
(“GGL"), a Hong Kong listed subsidiary of HLCM. He also holds
directorships in key listed subsidiaries and associated companies
of GGL including Guocoland Limited and Guocoleisure Limited,
both listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, and Hong Leong Bank Berhad listed on Bursa Malaysia.
He is also a director of Bank of Chengdu Co., Ltd.

Mr. Kwek qualified as a chartered accountant of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He is the brother-
in-law of Dr. Whang Sun Tze, a Non-Executive Director of the

Company.

Joseph Leung

Aged 51, Group Managing Director and Executive Director of the
Company since appointment to the Board in May 2012.

Mr. Leung holds a bachelor degree in Economics and a master
degree in Business Administration (Marketing) from Virginia
Polytechnic Institute and State University, USA. He has 25 years
of experience in the food and consumer products sectors. Prior
to joining the Company, he had worked in Hong Kong and
United States of America with companies including Sara Lee
Corporation, Heinz USA and R. J. Reynolds Tobacco Company
USA.
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Whang Sun Tze
Ph.D.

Aged 68, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1984.

Dr. Whang holds a Doctorate Degree in Chemical Engineering.
He is the brother-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Hai.

Lo Kwong Chi, Clement

Aged 67, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since 1993 and Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1975. He is the Chairman of the
Board Audit Committee and the Board Remuneration Committee
of the Company.

Mr. Lo is a solicitor by profession and was admitted to practice
both in Hong Kong and England in 1970.

Tan Lim Heng

Aged 64, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997.

Mr. Tan is an executive director of GGL and is the managing
director of GuocoCapital Limited and GuocoCommodities
Limited, wholly-owned subsidiaries of GGL. Mr. Tan holds a
Bachelor of Science first class honours degree in engineering
from University of Surrey and a Master of Science degree in
management from Massachusetts Institute of Technology.
He had previously worked in Geneva in 1974 with the United
Nations Conference on Trade and Development. He had also
served in the Singapore Civil Service as a Colombo Plan Scholar
1975-1978 before coming to work in Hong Kong with a financial
services company and a major U.S. bank. Mr. Tan has extensive
experience in property investment, financial and investment

management services.
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE EE&1\

Tsang Cho Tai

Aged 62, Non-Executive Director of the Company since
appointment to the Board in 1997. Mr. Tsang is also a member
of Board Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Tsang was re-designated as Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in 1999 and as Non-Executive Director
in 2004.

Mr. Tsang is the chief financial officer of GGL. Prior to that, he
was an associate of an international firm of accountants. He
is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) as well as an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Ding Wai Chuen

Aged 52, Non-Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ding
was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company in September 2004. He was re-designated as a
Non-Executive Director in September 2009 and as an Executive
Director in March 2012. He was further re-designated as a Non-
Executive Director in June 2012.

Mr. Ding is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow member of the
HKICPA. Mr. Ding is currently the Chief Executive of the HKICPA.

Mr. Ding has over 27 years of experience as a professional
accountant with international firms of accountants in England
and in Hong Kong and with the HKICPA.
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Lo Kai Yiu, Anthony

Aged 63, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in December 2008. He is
a member of the Board Audit Committee and the Board
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Lo is qualified as a chartered accountant with the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada and a member of
the HKICPA. Mr. Lo has over 30 years of experience in banking,
finance and investments. He worked for a number of well-known

financial institutions as managing director.

Mr. Lo is an independent non-executive director and members
of the audit and nomination committees of the Taiwan Fund Inc,
which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Lo is also
an independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit
committee of Mecox Lane Limited, a company listed on Nasdag
in the USA.

He also holds other directorships in a number of listed
companies in Hong Kong including independent non-executive
director and the audit committee chairman of IDT International
Limited; independent non-executive director, the audit committee
chairman and members of the compensation and nomination
committees of Playmates Holdings Limited; independent non-
executive director, audit committee chairman and member of
the remuneration committee of Tristate Holdings Limited; and
independent non-executive director and members of the audit
and nomination committees of Convenient Retail Asia Limited.

Au Chee Ming

Aged 61, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
since appointment to the Board in August 2009. He is a
member of the Board Remuneration Committee and the Board
Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Au holds a Bachelor Degree in Commerce and Finance from
The University of Calgary, Canada. Mr. Au has over 30 years
of experience in banking and finance sectors. He worked for a
number of world-wide banks and financial institutions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT ¥ &;4iRE=

Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has
adopted a Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “CGP
Code”), which is based on the principles set out in Appendix
14 (the “HKEx Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”). The CGP Code was recently updated to take
effect from April 2012 to reflect the new requirements under
the revised HKEx Code (the “Revised HKEx Code”). Continuous
efforts are made to review and enhance the Group’s internal
controls and procedures in light of changes in regulations and

developments in best practices.

The Board is pleased to report compliance with the HKEx Code
for the period from 1 July 2011 up to March 2012 and the
Revised HKEx Code for the period from 1 April 2012 to 30 June
2012, except where otherwise stated.

Every director is subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years pursuant to the Articles of Association of the
Company and the CGP Code.

Despite non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meetings of the Company, as stipulated
by the HKEx Code. As such, the Company considers that
such provisions are sufficient to meet the intent of the relevant
provisions of the HKEx Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company had adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code
of conduct governing directors’ securities transactions.

All directors of the Company during the year, following specific
enquiry by the Company, have confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.
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Board of Directors
Composition of the Board

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
hereof are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 53.

Board Meetings, General Meeting and Attendance

During the year, four board meetings and one general meeting
were held. Details of individual attendance of directors at the

EFE

REAFERAREIAREEAY A2 FZE
EENECHNESSHESEREEAR °

ESTEES  REXERUEEZE

REAFER HBIOAESESEER AR
RAE - BRESRAFEALFESESSE

board meetings and general meeting during the year are set out EREAZ2HBENTE
in the table below: —
Board General
Meeting Meeting
Number of Number of
Attendance/ Attendance/
Number of Number of
Meeting Held Meeting Held
ESgER BREXE
HERE, HERS
Name of Director EEgs BITERAY BITERAY
Chairman: xE:
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai L EE 4/4 1/1
Group Managing Director: EEEFHEEHE :
Mr. Joseph LEUNG (Note 1) REEEE(HFT) 1/1 0/0
Mr. LEUNG Wai Fung (Note 2) RBIWELE (HF2) 3/3 1/1
Non-Executive Directors: FEHITES :
Dr. WHANG Sun Tze BELEEL 4/4 1/1
Mr. TAN Lim Heng WMEH[‘:E 4/4 1/1
Mr. TSANG Cho Tai HExEE 4/4 1/1
Mr. DING Wai Chuen TL%ﬁf"zéE 4/4 1/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BIiIFEHITESE :
Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement EELSRE 4/4 1/1
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony ERR L E 4/4 1/1
Mr. AU Chee Ming B EAE 4/4 1/1
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Board of Directors (continued)

Board Meetings, General Meeting and Attendance
(continued)

Notes:

(1) Mr. Joseph LEUNG was appointed as Group Managing Director
on 2 May 2012.

(2) Mr. LEUNG Wai Fung resigned as Executive Director and Group
Managing Director on 1 March 2012.

Operations of the Board

The Board determines the corporate mission and broad
strategies, monitors and controls operating and financial
performance and sets appropriate policies to manage risks in
pursuit of the Group’s strategic objectives. Decisions involving
financial statements, dividend policy, material contracts and
major investments and divestments are reviewed and subject
to approval by the Board. Other main roles of the Board are
to review the company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and to ensure that adequate internal control systems
and management information systems are in place, including
being in compliance with every aspect of the provisions of
applicable laws, regulations, rules, directives and guidelines to
create value for its shareholders and to ensure that the Company
has adequate management to achieve the Company’s strategic

objectives.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group’s businesses to management of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

Where appropriate, decisions are also taken by way of circulated

resolutions.

Board papers are circulated prior to board meetings on a timely
manner, which include, among others, financial and corporate
information, significant operational and corporate issues and
business performance of the Group as well as management
proposals which require the approval of the Board.
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Board of Directors (continued)
Operations of the Board (continued)

All directors have access to the advice and services of the
company secretary and internal auditors, and upon reasonable
request, independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, if any.

Independence of the Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) for the
year pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Up to and as at
the date of this report, the Company considers that the INEDs

continue to be independent.
Relationship among the Members of the Board

The family relationships among the members of the Board are
disclosed under “Directors’ Profile” on pages 30 to 33 of this
annual report.

Induction and Development

Directors of the Company are continually updated with legal
and regulatory developments, and the business environment to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities. All new Directors
of the Company receive an induction on his appointment to
enhance their knowledge and understanding of the Group’s
structure, business and operations.

In addition, the Company has sent the latest version of “A Guide
on Directors’ Duties” published by the Hong Kong Companies
Registry, “Guidelines for Directors” and “Guide for Independent
Non-Executive Directors” published by The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors to its Directors and encourages them to read such
guides in order to acquaint themselves with the general duties of
directors and the required standard of care, skill and diligence in
the performance of their functions and exercise of their powers
as Directors.
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Board of Directors (continued)

Induction and Development (continued)

During the period from 1 April 2012 to 30 June 2012, all directors
of the Company namely, Messrs, KWEK Leng Hai, Joseph
LEUNG, WHANG Sun Tze, LO Kwong Chi, Clement, TAN Lim
Heng, TSANG Cho Tai, DING Wai Chuen, LO Kai Yiu, Anthony
and AU Chee Ming received regular updates and presentation on
operational review and developments to the Group’s business
and to the legislative and regulatory environments to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. All Directors are requested
to provide the Company with their respective training record
pursuant to the CGP Code.

Chairman and Group Managing
Director

The roles of Chairman and Group Managing Director (“GMD”) are
segregated and are not held by the same person. Currently Mr.
KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman and Mr. Joseph LEUNG is the
GMD of the Company.

The primary responsibility of the Chairman is to ensure effective
functioning of the Board, which focuses on the Group’s broad
strategic direction and macro oversight of the management.
The GMD is responsible for the management of the Company
in accordance with the strategies approved by the Board of
Directors.

Non-Executive Directors

The non-executive directors were not appointed for a specific
term. However, they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting pursuant to the articles of
association of the Company and the CGP Code.
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Board Committees

During the year, three board committees, namely, the Board
Remuneration Committee, the Board Audit Committee and the
Board Nomination Committee (established on 1 April 2012) were
in place for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs pursuant to the Listing Rules and the CGP Code.

The three board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference, approved by the
Board, which set out the Committees’ major duties. The terms
of reference now being posted on the websites of the Stock

Exchange and the Company, are available to shareholders.

The majority of the members of each board committee are
INEDs. The list of the chairman and members of each board

committee is set out in the following board committee section.

The board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expense.

Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC”)

The Company established the BRC on 1 July 2005 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirements
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The principal role and functions of the BRC is to make
recommendations to the Board on its policy and structure for
all directors’ and senior management, as well as to determine
the specific remuneration packages of all executive directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.
Detailed terms of reference of the BRC is accessible on the

Company’s website.
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Board Committees (continueq)
Board Remuneration Committee (“BRC”) (continued)

The BRC has adopted the approach under code provision
B.1.2(c)(i) of the Revised HKEx Code to determine, with
delegated responsibility and authorisation by the Board, the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors and

senior management.

For the year, the BRC comprised Messrs. LO Kwong Chi,
Clement , KWEK Leng Hai and AU Chee Ming. Mr. KWEK Leng
Hai was Chairman of BRC for the period from 1 July 2011 to 31
March 2012 and was re-designated as a member of BRC on 1
April 2012. Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement was a member of BRC
for the period from 1 July 2011 to 31 March 2012 and was re-
designated as Chairman of BRC on 1 April 2012. Mr. LO Kwong
Chi, Clement and Mr. AU Chee Ming are INEDs of the Company
whilst Mr. KWEK Leng Hai is the Chairman of the Company.

During the year, two BRC meetings were held. The individual
attendance of each member was as follows:
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Number of
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Number of

Meeting Held

HERE

Name of Director EEnE BITERAH
Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement (Chairman) BELKE(EFE) 2/2
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai HI/EE 2/2
Mr. AU Chee Ming B . 2/2

At these meetings, the remuneration packages of the executive
director and senior management for the year were reviewed. The
BRC also determined the policy for the remuneration of executive
directors and approving the terms of executive director’s service
contract.
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Board Committees (continueq)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC”)

The Company established the BNC on 1 April 2012 with specific
written terms of reference in accordance with the requirement
of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its authority and
duties.

The BNC comprised Messrs. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman of the
BNC), LO Kai Yu, Anthony and AU Chee Ming.

The principal role and function of the BNC is to make
recommendations to the Board on the structure, size and
composition of the Board, and to review the independence of
independent non-executive directors, the suitability of directors
who will stand for re-election and directors’ continuous training
and development programme. Detailed terms of reference of the
BNC is accessible on the Company’s website.

During the year, decisions to consider the appointment of Group
Managing Director was taken by way of circulated resolutions.
One BNC meeting was held after the year end. The individual

attendance of each member was as follows:
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Number of
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Number of

Meeting Held

HERS

Name of Director EEHE BITERAY
Mr. KWEK Leng Hai (Chairman) LB EE(EE) 1/1
Mr. LO Kai Yu, Anthony ERUBEE 11
Mr. AU Chee Ming BRIt 11
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Board Committees (continueq)
Board Nomination Committee (“BNC”) (continued)
Work done during the year

— reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board
(including the mix of skills, knowledge, experience and
competences of directors, and the balance between
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
directors) and is of the view that there is an appropriate

and diverse mix of skills and experience;

- reviewed the independence of independent non-
executive directors of the Company and confirmed that
all independent non-executive directors are considered

independent;

— reviewed the profile and performance of directors who will
stand for re-election at 2012 Annual General Meeting and
confirmed that all those directors are suitable to stand for

re-election; and

— reviewed the continuous training and development
programs undertaken by directors and confirmed that an
appropriate program is in place.

Board Audit Committee (“BAC”)

The Company established the BAC on 29 December 1998
with specific written terms of reference in accordance with the
requirement of the Stock Exchange which deal clearly with its

authority and duties.

For the year, the BAC comprised Messrs. LO Kwong Chi,
Clement (Chairman of the BAC), TSANG Cho Tai and LO Kai
Yiu, Anthony. Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement and Mr. LO Kai Yiu,
Anthony are INEDs of the Company whilst Mr. TSANG Cho Tai is

the non-executive director of the Company.
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Board Audit Committee (“BAC”)

(continued)

The BAC oversees the financial reporting process and assesses
the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s system of
internal control. The BAC meets with the Company’s external
and internal auditors, and reviews their audit plans, the internal
audit programmes, the results of their examinations as well as
their evaluations of the system of internal control. It also reviews
directors’ interests in contracts and connected transactions.
The BAC reviews the Group’s and the Company’s financial
statements and the auditors’ report thereon and submits its
views to the Board. Detailed terms of reference of the BAC is

accessible on the Company’s website.

During the year, six BAC meetings were held. The individual
attendance of each member was as follows:

Name of Director

EEMA

s

W%Bnﬁﬁ?‘,‘ﬁEEA? g&ﬁ;& %V?E
g B Z SMEE R BLAT K A EBAZ ELRT - LA
= )QEZ%VE* - RBEZER - BEF
BRZERURBEHRANEZ ARG 2TE - &
REEETERNESNECRARBERZ 2F&
BR - BREZEEEMAEEAREQATZHE
BRURMEBZZEMBEE  LNESSIR
RER ERZESBRESHEZFBENRAAT
L AIHER] -

REFER HBETRNABEREZEEEZ - #
BIMEHEZBEREFIWNT

Number of
Attendance/
Number of
Meeting Held
HERE
BITEHRRE

Mr. LO Kwong Chi, Clement (Chairman)
Mr. TSANG Cho Tai
Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony

The following is a summary of the work performed by the BAC
during the year:

— reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group’s systems of internal control and enterprise risk

management;

— reviewed the consolidated financial statements and results
of the Group;

— reviewed the external auditors’ report thereon;
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Board Audit Committee (“BAC”)

(continued)

— reviewed the appropriateness of the Group’s accounting
policies;

— reviewed at various times the potential impact of the
generally accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong on
the Company’s accounts;

— reviewed the nature and scope of external audit and
approved the external audit fee;

— reviewed adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experiences of staff of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function, and their training programmes;
and

— reviewed connected transactions entered into by the
Group or subsisting during the year.

Directors’ Responsibilities for
Preparing the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company have acknowledged their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements for the
year. There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 68 to 69 of

this annual report.

Auditors’ Remuneration

For the year, the external auditors of the Group charged
approximately HK$1.5 million for annual audit service and
approximately HK$1.7 million for tax and other services.
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Internal Control

The internal control system is designed to facilitate the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, safeguard assets
against unauthorised use and disposition, ensure the
maintenance of proper accounting records and the truth and
fairness of the financial statements, and ensure compliance with
relevant legislation and regulations. It provides reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss
and manages rather than eliminates risks associated with its
business activities.

The Board, recognising its responsibilities in ensuring sound
internal controls, has developed a risk management framework
for the Group to assist in:

— identifying the significant risks faced by the Group in the
operating environment as well as evaluating the impact of
such risks identified;

— developing the necessary measures for managing these
risks; and

— monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness and adequacy
of such measures.

The Board has entrusted the BAC with the responsibility to
oversee the implementation of the risk management framework
of the Group. In discharging this responsibility, the BAC, assisted
by the Group Internal Audit Department:

— ensures that new and emerging risks relevant to the

Group are promptly identified by management;

— assesses the adequacy of action plans and control
systems developed to manage these risks; and

— monitors the implementation of the action plans and the

effectiveness and adequacy of the control systems.
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Internal Control (continueg)

These on-going processes have been in place, and reviewed
periodically by the BAC.

The controls built into the risk management framework are
intended to manage and not expected to eliminate all risks of
failure to achieve business objectives. These controls provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement of management and financial information or against
financial losses and fraud.

In the associated companies and jointly controlled companies,
the Board nominates representatives to sit as directors and
take a proactive stance in assessing the performance of the
entity with the goal of safeguarding the investment of the Group.
Where practical, the Group may request functional, financial and
operating information as well as assurance that such information
have been prepared in accordance with reporting standards and
have been derived from control environments acceptable to the
Group.

The Board, through the BAC, has conducted an annual review
on the Group’s internal control system and considers that it is
adequate and effective. The Board is satisfied that the Group has
fully complied with the provisions on internal controls as set out
in the CGP Code.
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Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares, all shares have the

same voting rights and are entitled to the dividends declared.

The Articles of Association set out the rights of our shareholders.

(a)

Rights and procedures for shareholders to
convene extraordinary general meetings (“EGM”)

The Directors shall on the requisition of shareholders
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not
less than one-twentieth of such of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to
convene an EGM of the Company.

The requisition must state the objects of the meeting, and
must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the
Company’s registered office at 3/F., Lam Soon Building,
21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New
Territories, Hong Kong (the “Company’s Registered
Office”) and may consist of several documents in like form
each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with Hongkong Managers and
Secretaries Limited, the Company’s share registrar, at Unit
3401-2, 34th Floor, AIA Tower, 183 Electric Road, North
Point, Hong Kong (the “Company’s Share Registrar”) and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the EGM.

If Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene an
EGM for a day not more than 28 days after the date
on which the notice convening the EGM is given, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than
one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene an EGM, but any EGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the
said date.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continueq)

(b) Rights and procedures for shareholders to
make proposals at general meetings

(i)

(if)

Rights and procedures for a shareholder to
propose a person for election as a director are as
follows:

Pursuant to Article 80 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, shareholder(s) may send a notice
in writing of the intention to propose a person for
election as a director and notice in writing by that
person of his willingness to be elected shall have
been delivered to the Company’s Registered Office
provided that the minimum length of the period
during which such notices are given, shall be at
least seven days and that the period for lodgment
of the notices shall commence no earlier than the
day after the despatch of the notice of the meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than

seven days prior to the date of such meeting.

Rights and procedures for proposing resolution to
be put forward at a general meeting

Shareholder(s) can submit a written requisition to
move a resolution at an Annual General Meeting
(*AGM”) if they

— represent not less than one-fortieth of the
total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote
at the AGM; or

— are no less than 50 shareholders holding the
Company’s shares on which there has been
paid up an average sum, per shareholder, of
not less than HK$2,000.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continueq)

(b) Rights and procedures for shareholders to
make proposals at general meetings (continued)

The written requisition must —

state the resolution, accompanied by a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the AGM;

contain the signatures of all the requisitionists
(which may be contained in one document or in
several documents in like form);

be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office
for the attention of the Company Secretary not
less than 6 weeks before the AGM in the case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not
less than 1 week before the AGM in the case of

any other requisition; and

be accompanied by a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
serving the notice of the resolution and circulating
the statement given by the requisitionists to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements

under the applicable laws and rules.

Communication with Shareholders

The Company uses a range of communication tools to ensure its

shareholders are kept well informed of key business imperatives.

These include annual general meeting, annual report, interim

report, various notices, announcements and circulars.
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Communication with Shareholders

(continued)

The Company shall communicate other information to
Shareholders on a need basis by way of announcement which
will be posted on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited and the Company. Other than annual
general meeting, EGM shall be held pursuant to relevant
rules and regulations if required. Shareholders shall receive
explanatory circulars and proxy forms relating to the EGMs.
Proxy arrangements for the general meetings are in place for
shareholders who are unable to attend the meetings in person.

Shareholders and the investment community shall be provided
with designated contacts, email addresses and enquiry lines
of the Company, which are available on the Company website,
in order to enable them to make any query in respect of the
Company or to make a request for the Company’s information to

the extent such information is publicly available.

Shareholders’ questions about their shareholdings should be
directed to the Company’s Share Registrar, Hongkong Managers
and Secretaries Limited at Unit 3401-2, 34th Floor , AIA Tower,
1883 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong.

A dedicated Investor Relations section is available on the
Company website www.lamsoon.com. Information on the
Company website is updated on a regular basis.

Investor Relations

In order to enhance communication between the Company
and investors/analysts, senior management members will hold
meetings with investors/analysts upon request as and when the
need arises.

Investors are welcome to send email directly to the Company
Secretary’s email at comsec@lamsoon.com or browse
the Company’s website for the latest release and financial
information.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2012.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 173 to
175.

Subsidiaries

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out on pages 173
to 175.

Financial Statements

The loss of the Group for the year, the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2012 and the Group’s
cash flows and statement of changes in equity for the year
ended are set out in the financial statements on pages 70 to
172.

Dividends

The Directors are recommending to the shareholders for
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held
on Tuesday, 20 November 2012 a final dividend of HK$0.08 per
share. No interim dividend was declared this year (2011: interim
dividend of HK$0.06 per share and final dividend of HK$0.10 per
share). Subject to shareholders’ approval, the final dividend will
be payable on Tuesday, 4 December 2012 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members on Tuesday,
27 November 2012.
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Closure of Register of Members

The Register of Members will be closed from Friday, 16
November 2012 to Tuesday, 20 November 2012 (both days
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order for the shareholders to be eligible to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company, all transfer of shares accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share
Registrars and Transfer Office — Hongkong Managers and
Secretaries Limited (“HKMS”) at Unit 3401-2, 34th Floor, AIA
Tower, 1883 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, not later
than 4:00 p.m. on Thursday, 15 November 2012 for registration.

The Register of Members will also be closed from Monday, 26
November 2012 to Tuesday, 27 November 2012 (both days
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfer
of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with HKMS, not later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 23
November 2012 for registration.

Charitable Donations

Charitable donations made by the Group amounted to Nil during
the year (2011: HK$500,000).

Share Capital

As set out in Note 31 to the financial statements, there were no
movements in share capital during the year.

Reserves

Movements in reserves of the Group during the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

Fixed Assets

Movements in fixed assets during the year are set out in Note 17
to the financial statements.
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Directors

The directors during the year and up to the date of this report

are:

KWEK Leng Hai, Chairman*
LEUNG Joseph, Group Managing Director**
— appointed on 2 May 2012
WHANG Sun Tze*
LO Kwong Chi, Clement”
TAN Lim Heng*
TSANG Cho Tai*
DING Wai Chuen*
— re-designated as Executive Director on 1 March 2012 and
as Non-executive Director on 1 June 2012

LO Kai Yiu, Anthony”
AU Chee Ming"
LEUNG Wai Fung
— resigned on 1 March 2012

Non-executive director
Executive director
Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Article 78 of the Company’s articles of
association, Messrs. WHANG Sun Tze, TAN Lim Heng and
TSANG Cho Tai shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
(*AGM”).

In accordance with Article 79 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Joseph LEUNG shall retire and, being eligible,

offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, holding company
or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

Connected Transactions
Master Services Agreement

A master services agreement (the “Master Services Agreement”)
was entered into by the Company (together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) with GuolLine Group Management Co. Limited
(“GGMC”) and GOMC Limited (“GOMC”) on 30 June 2011 for
provision of services by GGMC or GOMC (the “Service Provider”)
to the Company and/or its subsidiaries, which include, among
other things, overview of businesses and operations, investment
management and financial management disciplines, treasury
and risk management, key managerial recruitment and retention,
productivity and quality programmes and other operating
practices and procedures as well as planning and development

of management information systems (the “Services”).

The Master Services Agreement is for a term of three financial
years from 1 July 2011 to 30 June 2014.

The fees payable under the Master Services Agreement comprise
a monthly fee (the “Monthly Fee”) of HK$50,000 (or such amount
as agreed from time to time between the Service Providers and
the Company) and an annual fee (the “Annual Fee”) equal to 3
percent of the annual profits before tax of the Company and the
subsidiaries as shown in the audited profit and loss accounts for
the relevant financial year, subject to appropriate adjustments.
The total fee, being the sum of the Monthly Fee, the Annual Fee
and the total amount of any fees paid or payable by the Group to
any Hong Leong Group Company for Services of a similar nature
as the services are subject to an annual cap of HK$22 million
(the “Annual Cap”) for each of the three financial years ending 30
June 2014.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

Master Services Agreement (continued)

GGMC and GOMC are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM?”), the ultimate
holding company of the Company, and thus they are associates
of a connected person of the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). HLCM is deemed to be
invested in shareholding in the Company. The transactions under
the Master Services Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed the transactions under the Master Services Agreement

during the year and confirmed that:

(1) the transactions under the Master Services Agreement for

the year were entered into:

— in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

— on terms no less favourable to the Group than the
respective terms available from independent third

parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them and on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders

of the Company as a whole;

2) the aggregate service fees paid and payable by the
Group under the Master Services Agreement for the year
amounted to approximately HK$0.6 million which did not
exceed the Annual Cap of HK$22 million as disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 4 July 2011.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Share Option Scheme

The Company obtained shareholders’ approval on 18 April 2006
to modify the share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
Option Scheme”) to provide for the satisfaction of the exercise of
options through issue of new shares of the Company or transfer
of existing issued shares of the Company (“Existing Shares”) or
a combination of both. A trust for the Share Option Scheme (the
“Trust”) was established in July 2006 pursuant to a trust deed
(the “Trust Deed”) between the Company and a trustee of the
Trust (the “Trustee”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group,
to acquire Existing Shares for the purpose of the Share Option
Scheme. The Company or its subsidiaries will provide finances to
the Trust from time to time to enable the Trust to acquire such
shares.

The Trust, whose beneficiaries include eligible participants of the
Share Option Scheme who may be directors and chief executive
of the Group, is deemed to be a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

The grant of options to the directors and chief executive of the
Group (who are connected persons of the Company under the
Listing Rules) pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and the
provision of finances to the Trust from time to time constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company had
reviewed such continuing connected transactions during the year

and confirmed that:

(1) no option was granted under the Share Option Scheme
for the year; and
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

2 during the year, the amount of finances provided by
the Group to the Trust was HK$15,553,000 and the
transaction has been eliminated within the Group. The
maximum subsisting amount of the finances provided
by the Group for the purchase of Existing Shares was
approximately HK$22,382,000 which did not exceed
the cap amount of HK$90 million as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 10 March 2006.

The provisions of such finances were made:

— in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

— on normal commercial terms or on terms no
less favourable than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

- in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders

of the Company as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions regarding the master service agreement
and share option scheme as mentioned above in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditors
have issued an unqualified letter containing their findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Connected Transactions (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

Transactions with a jointly controlled entity disclosed as related
party transactions in the note 36 to the financial statements
do not fall under the definition of connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions and are not disclosed above.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other transactions of
the Company which require disclosure in the annual report in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

Management Contracts

Except the Master Services Agreement disclosed in the section
of “Connected Transactions” above, no contract concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Group was entered into or subsisted

during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing
Business

None of the directors is interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business, which is likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the business of the Group.

FAER 5 @)
BERRIEET B (&)

BEHEEEH 2 R EETHRE (RBERMBRE
MFESCRB AN Z N AT EBERSH
FEEERZ 2E%  BAX LR HEHE

= o

BAXFBEE S  ALRDLBEMRS AR
15 LIRS VR o

EHEY

BREXBEERS | -EHREZ2REEHE
I RAFEERBET VS FEEANERASE
EEEXBEAEMERXFE 2EERITRIAF

MEH -

EFNRPER 2 ER

BEEENEAEEEBFEEIEERTH
BRHFEAREEER D EEEAES -

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2012 | —ZE——F % HIE(FB)ERAT



DIRECTORS’ REPORT =¥ & iR&E

Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 30 June 2012, the directors of the Company have the
following interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”) set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules:
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EERRG - ARG RE
F2tEm

RZE—ZFXRA=1TH ' SEEREQAR
HEMHEAR(ERREZRAEHRH(ES
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T :
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(A) The Company (A) EAF
Approximate
percentage of
Number of total issued
shares/ share capital
underlying of the Company
Nature of shares held EEAT
Name of director interest Bk Note Total ERTRAEHE
EEHa EannE HEREE Kz @t ZBHE R
KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,300,000 2,300,000 0.95%
S & A
WHANG Sun Tze Personal 27,123,743
ELHE A
Corporate 19,326 Note (a) 27,143,069 11.15%
AT Hit (a)
LO Kwong Chi, Clement ~ Personal 406,754 406,754 0.17%
BEL @A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 274,000 274,000 0.11%
IR ok B & A
DING Wai Chuen Personal 10,000 10,000 0.00%
TR fEA
Note: itz
(a) The interests disclosed represent the corporate interests (a) FiEEcERRKRELEELER

of Dr. WHANG Sun Tze in 18,457 ordinary shares and
869 ordinary shares in the Company held by SGR
Investment Company, Limited (“SGR”) and T.C. Whang &
Company (Private) Limited (“T.C. & Co.”) respectively. Dr.
WHANG Sun Tze holds 95.41% and 59.52% interests in
SGR and T.C. & Co. respectively.

SGR Investment Company, Limited
(TSGRJ) K T.C. Whang & Company
(Private) Limited ([T.C. & Co.l)7 5l
BB AR D TF18,457 f E B IR & 869
REBR2ER - ELEFLESCGR
RT.C. & Co. Al HF B95.41% K&
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Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)

Associated corporations

DIRECTORS’ REPORT EE&iR&E

¢,

=F
HFZHEL =)

Rzt -~ HEE RS RE

Approximate
percentage
of total issued

Number of share capital
shares/ of associated
Name of underlying corporation
associated Nature of shares held EHEATEH
corporation Name of director interest BakH Total {TRAGHEZE
BEASEE ExzE e ] @t HEstt
Hong Leong Company KWEK Leng Hai Personal 420,500 420,500 2.61%
(Malaysia) Berhad s (EPN
Guoco Group Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 3,800,775 3,800,775 1.16%
EEEERRAR B8 EPN
TAN Lim Heng Personal 566,230 566,230 0.17%
B L A
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 1,000 1,000 0.00%
B8R A
DING Wai Chuen Personal 5,000 5,000 0.00%
TE# A
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony Personal 6,067 6,067 0.00%
BRUE A
Guocoland Limited KWEK Leng Hai Personal 35,290,914 35,290,914 2.98%
SR ERRAH #28 (5PN
WHANG Sun Tze Family 66,600 66,600 0.01%
EfE e
TAN Lim Heng Personal 1,337,777 1,337,777 0.11%
Bk (EPN
TSANG Cho Tai Personal 357,333 357,333 0.03%
BH% 5PN
Hong Leong Bank Berhad KWEK Leng Hai Personal 4,750,000 4,750,000 0.26%
B8 (5PN
WHANG Sun Tze Family 129,000 129,000 0.01%
EHE Rk
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¢,

Directors’ Interests in Shares, EERKkGR - HER D RE
Underlying Shares and Debentures %2k«

t

(continued)
(B) Associated corporations (continued) (B) HEBAT(#E)
Approximate
percentage
of total issued
Number of share capital
shares/ of associated
Name of underlying corporation
associated Nature of shares held EHEATCHE
corporation Name of director interest BERG, Total {TRADBEZH
BEATER ExzE e L S @t HERLL
Hong Leong Financial Group KWEK Leng Hai Personal 2,316,800 2,316,800 0.22%
Berhad BIEy ! {EDN
WHANG Sun Tze Family 534,092 534,092 0.05%
EHE eV
TAN Lim Heng Personal 245,700 245,700 0.02%
B TEIN
Hong Leong Industries Berhad ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 190,000 190,000 0.06%
#$28 A
WHANG Sun Tze Family 105,600 105,600 0.05%
BErE eV
Guocoland (Malaysia) Berhad ~ KWEK Leng Hai Personal 226,800 226,800 0.03%
#28 A
TAN Lim Heng Personal 326,010 326,010 0.05%
BRpk (5PN
Hume Industries (Malaysia) WHANG Sun Tze Family 12,667 12,667 0.01%
Sdn Bhd BELE Rk
Hong Leong Capital Berhad KWEK Leng Hai Personal 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.41%
B8 A
GuocoLeisure Limited TAN Lim Heng Personal 950,000 950,000 0.07%
B L A
Malaysian Pacific Industries KWEK Leng Hai Personal 71,250 71,250 0.04%
Berhad B! A
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Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(continued)
(B) Associated corporations (continued)

All the interests disclosed in sections (A) and (B) above
were long positions in the ordinary shares of the Company
or its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed herein, none of the directors of the
Company had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Options

The Company’s share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the shareholders on 23 May 2003 and amended
and approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary general
meeting on 18 April 2006 (“Date of Approval”). The amendments
to the rules of the Share Option Scheme on the Date of Approval
by the shareholders was to, among others, allow grant of options
over newly issued shares and/or transfer of existing shares by
the Trust of the Company and to align the rules under Chapter
17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate the
employees and directors of the Group and the employees of
associated companies (“Eligible Employee”) and to allow them to
participate in the growth of the Company.

¢,

EERKG - HERGD RE
HF 2R =)

(B) HEEEAE(#)

FrER L (A) R (B)RRATIRE < =S &
ABEALARAEBELNTAZHRER
MR D ©

BRAXFREEN  BETAAAFTE
ERARAHEEMEE QT RER
ZRAEHRPEXNVBZER)EBEEAR
BESRPERGIEL2IFREMR 2
BFoaMEbmEzRG  BERATZ
KRRD  HERORESRRERE
STRIAHMEA QB REER A2 -

Rzt

RRFzBRESE(BREFEDR-ZR
SEAACT=HRERRMERR-ZERE
mA+NB(#HEBHDRRRIGRIAE LR
RERAEER] - REEB S - SLBREST IR
AlzZRETCERR21tE  (ARhERE) &
HARHSRARBRAHBITROR, REBHE
TEIRARD ZBERE  URRELTHHRA
17 EERAMELIERT o

ZERESIEEHBEERNZEBENESU
ktERNRAcRBE(SERESR]D » RET
SEADNFZEBR -
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Share Options (continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued and/or
transferred by the Trust upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
Date of Approval of the Share Option Scheme. The maximum
entitlement for any Eligible Employee in respect of the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
options granted and to be granted in any 12 months period does
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The option price per share upon exercise of any share option will
be determined by the directors upon the grant of share option. It
will not be less than the greatest of (a) the average closing price
of a share as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the day of offer of such a share option; (b) the closing price of
a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet
on the day of offer of such a share option, which must be a

business day; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of
the share option within 21 days inclusive of, and from the date of

making such offer.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years commencing on 23 May 20083.

As at 1 July 2011, there were 18,150,000 outstanding options

pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

BRE

RIFBRES ST FREZFIBBRERTE
B ATk, /AEBHAETERZRDA
B SHASHBEHBRESEMERHALT
ERITROBEZ10% - RMEM+=EAHBH
EAEEREERTEESRHERETFREZE
BREZCBITRETRTIRDZELH &1
SEBEBRITRIDZ1% °

RITEEMBERE SRROXBEHESES
REHKBER - BEEFTIR(URSERE)
@ BEERUZBREZHANOEEXABRR
ZEBRABMERFBERTZERROFIRTE
OEHZBEREER (BMAREXR)BMR 2
BERHRERTBERZERBROETER ()BK
HE °

HRE AR =+ — AR EAROBRE
ANREBB 1T -

BREGEAENB+F H-ZZTEE=FHA
“t+=HB%EK-

NZBE——F+tA—0 - REBRESEEX
TEZERES 18,150,000 °
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Share Options (continued)

During the year, 8,000,000 options granted to the then Group
Managing Director and certain eligible employees were lapsed.
Details of the share options as at 30 June 2012 are as follows:

BERE

REAFEER BFiIEEESAKERET
EEHREESHLS,0000002BRES KM -
HBWT

No. of Exercise price
Date of grant Grantees outstanding options per share
RHBEH BEA RITERBRESE BIRITEE
HK$
B
26 August 2010 Employees of the Group 10,150,000 6.86 Note
—E-ZEFNA=+RHE KEHEE Krat
Note: et :

The vesting of the Options is subject to fulfillment of certain prescribed
performance targets and contribution criteria being met by the Grantees
during the performance periods for the financial years 2010/2011
to 2013/2014. At the end of the relevant performance period, the
Board Remuneration Committee of the Company shall determine at its
discretion, the extent of achievement of the performance targets and
contribution criteria set out for that period, and decide on the vesting of
the Options and the number of Shares comprised in the vested Options.
Thereafter, the Grantees shall be notified of the vesting of the Options
(“Date of Notification”) and shall have an exercise period of up to 30
months following the Date of Notification to exercise the vested Options
in accordance with the terms of the grant.

During the year, no options were granted to a director or other
employees of the Group pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.
Save as disclosed herein, no other options were vested,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year. Accordingly,
the number of outstanding options was 10,150,000 at 30 June
2012.

Save for above, certain other subsidiaries of Hong Leong
Company (Malaysia) Berhad maintain share option schemes
or plans which subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year, under which eligible directors of the Company
may be granted share options for acquisition of shares of
respective companies concerned. No person, being a director of
the Company during the year, held shares acquired in pursuance
of certain aforesaid share option schemes or plans.

EEEREDREE-_T-T -"E--FE_F
—= /R -EEPRFEZRABENER AER
ETHRNRREAEREMAEE RNEBRRYM[
ERE EEEFNESSKERZPBARTEZ
RERREEREH REBRE-GBERCEES
REBEZROHE - BERASEBN(THEEHD
FRERECRE  YTRANSAHEF=1TEA
MTEHRR - RERT 2RRITERG 2 BRE -

RAFER REBRESSLEREBR
ETESIEEAMES - RAXAKRESE
S RAFERALEBEHMBEREERIR
B ATE RRBIEE Bt R=ZF—Z
FRA=ZtTH HRTTEZBREHES
10,150,000 °

B k£ X Fr it & 4b > Hong Leong Company
(Malaysia) Berhad & FTEMHBARERIR
48 B E E (T B R D AR AR R IR 10 R B
EFTEISAR Bt ARATEERESHE
RRABEBEARRMD ZBRORIERE - REAFE
AN BEGARQATNEBSZALIEEREST
MR HRERETES T RBAZRY ©
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Share Options (continued)

Apart from above, at no time during the year was the Company,
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ and
Other Persons’ Interests in Shares

As at 30 June 2012, the following shareholders (other than
directors of the Company whose interests or short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as disclosed
above) had interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of
the SFO:

HE R HE =)

BrEXPRAES  RAFER  ADF - HiE
BT MEQRNERNE AR EEMER
BEXBEMNZHZTNE  UBARAFTES
ARERBAQRAREMEMEE 2 RO HES
BRI -

FERRZ s

RZZB-—ZFXRA=1TH RESFHFRHAEMHK
Bl 336 IR EMBR 2 B RMHFAE - T3
AT (RABRESHFEALAZROREBR
KAz R B RORAEEBRD 2 RERINFER
NEROREBRAR ZARRHRAEER D
ZRER

Approximate

Number of percentage

shares held Note of interest

HAZRHEE Mzt S =Rl A

Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”) 154,327,659 A) 63.42%

QUEK Leng Chan 154,327,659 A) 63.42%
ISy

HL Holdings Sdn Bhd (“HLH") 154,327,659 A) 63.42%

Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte Limited (“HLIH") 154,327,659 A) 63.42%

Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited (“Davos”) 154,327,659 A) 63.42%

KWEK Leng Kee 154,327,659 (A) 63.42%
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Substantial Shareholders’ and
Other Persons’ Interests in Shares

(continued)
Note:

(A) The interests comprised (i) 140,008,659 ordinary shares in
the Company held by GuoLine International Limited (“GIL”); (ii)
4,994,000 ordinary shares in the Company held by Richly Choice
Development (PTC) Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company; and (iii) 9,325,000 underlying shares of the Company
of other unlisted derivatives held by Oceanease Limited.

GIL was a wholly-owned subsidiary of GuolLine Capital Assets
Limited (“GCA”) which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
HLCM. Oceanease Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
GuocoEquity Assets Limited which in turn was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Guoco Group Limited which in turn was 71.52%
owned by GuoLine Overseas Limited (“GOL”). GOL was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of GCA. By virtue of Section 316(2) of the
SFO, HLCM was 49.27% owned by Mr. QUEK Leng Chan as
to 2.424% under his personal name, 46.534% via HLH which
was wholly-owned by him and 0.311% via Newton (L) Limited.
Newton (L) Limited was wholly-owned by Newton Capital Group
Limited which was 2.424% owned by Mr. QUEK Leng Chan and
46.534% owned by HLH. HLCM was held as to 34.69% by HLIH.
Mr. KWEK Leng Kee held 41.92% interest in Davos which in turn
held 33.59% interest in HLIH.

All the interests disclosed under this section were long positions
in the ordinary shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein, no other person (other than directors
of the Company) has an interest or a short position in the shares
and underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

FERRZFKER =)

BEE -

ZHEZETE () GuoLine International Limited
(TGILD) # 8 R 4 A 5 140,008,659 i & i@
BzRR (i) XARZ2EMB2LF Richly
Choice Development (PTC) Limited FHER
A F14,994,000 8 & B I 2 B R (i)
Oceanease Limited A4 A B EMIE Ef T4
T £9,325,000 B AEBAMR 10 2 #E 2 ©

GIL & GuolLine Capital Assets Limited
(TGCAD Z2EM B AR #%%FKHLCM
ZZ=EM B ARQ T o Oceanease Limited & Bl
ERAEEERATDNZZENBLAR &
EABREEBERARAZEZENB AR
I A GuoLine Overseas Limited ([GOLJ) & &
71.52% > GOLA GCAZ 2 EM B A Al - RiF
EERBEREHEII6HFBEE  HLCM Z
QTN RERABLBEEUARABERE
2.424% ~ b2 EHEH 2 HLHIFH 46.534%
K4 Newton (L) Limited 7 0.311% ° Newton
(L) Limited %& Newton Capital Group Limited
Z2EMBLAT > #EABSBEEURA
BEIFH2424% REHLHIEH 46.534% o
HLIHE BHLCM 34.69% Z # & ° KWEK
Leng Kee 4358 Davos 41.92% Z fRHEM
Davos Bl#FH HLIH 33.59% 2 BR & °

OB MEREERSEALTAFRE
BRI

BRAXFIMEEN  REFSRPEKRHE
3BEHRMEMR < B MATRCEE » WEHEMA
T(RRRAEEHMNBEERLTAROGREBAR
Rz KR RO AR 2 S -
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of
the Company’s Listed Shares

During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as
the trustee for a trust set up for the purpose of acquiring shares
of the Company to satisfy the exercise of options which may be
granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme adopted on 23
May 2003 and amended on 18 April 2006, purchased 3,601,000
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange at a total
consideration of HK$15,553,000.

Saved as disclosed above, during the year, the Company had not
redeemed, and neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

Total sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
less than 30% of the Group’s turnover for the year.

Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s purchases for the
year.

Sufficiency of Public Float

At all times during the year, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules, based on the
information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors.

Auditors

KPMG were first appointed as auditors of the Company in year
2012 upon retirement of PKF.

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, KPMG is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board
KWEK Leng Hai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 August 2012

BBE HESEBEOAATZ
J;ﬁ%%# g% A /|

REAEER  RAABZE2ENBAR(EE—E
BREZEFREA ZEXDAVRBERAT ZKRMH
MY BUBTRERAAR-_ZZE=F1H
AH=ZHEMARR-_ZEZARFOATNBKE
HzEREGTEITRREZRORBEZITR)
EEBBER S ATIEE3,601,000 AN E K
7 BREHRBY 15,553,000 7T °

Br EXCFTE SN RAFERARDTHERED
HEMLEHRZ  MAQXAREEFAMELT
HEBEIHETAALT LHES -

FEERRHER

FEHETHRANBLUTFNHEERLESR
SEAFEHEFEIMNI0% -

FEEEERANBELUHEBNBERGES
EEARFEBEAEIN30% °

RIAZABVFHIRE

ERAFARARAEHNZENRBESHA
B EARFEAR ARF-—BEHEFEHRAR

TR ARISRE o

R

ESREFMEBARAERBR(FB)ER
MEBARER R-IZBE-—_FEERZRER
NN TREED o

EREBARZBFERRERAE  BRERER
RREARESTRAEANSBERARQTANEE
i

AEEE®
TE
WLE

B8 “E—_—FENBZ+NH
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT B {Z iR EE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF LAM SOON (HONG KONG) LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (“the company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the group”) set out on pages 70 to 172,
which comprise the consolidated and company statements of
financial position as at 30 June 2012, the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Director’s Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

BIZRBRENEIE(FR)ARAT
2BERE
(REBEMELZBRLE])

R EE (AT BRI &M D EFIIHRNEE 70
EI2HEHIE(EB)ERLABDUATEHENE
'D\EJ)&EWE’D\E(L}LTQEFEKJ)H’J?
BRBRK  BEESUBRREER=Z
FRA=THNGEE BN KRR T BN R E
HEZZALFENRERER  GA2HENK
BR GAESRZPBRNGESRENER - U
REREHABRBERACHTHEES -

=EENGESHBRRARIE
BRI

BELAANESAEERBEETBEHMASHA
HE B B|EER)REFB(Q AR RA
REVBBR  URSHFESUBRRIFLHESR
MARKRREZEEIBERGSMHHREK
R BRRERES  UEMBREAFEAR
HRFF R AR T B R B ASERRR A o

AT ST

EMNEEERBEMNEFTHZEGFESUE
BRELER - RMARZRBEB(QAHEM)
B1ARNEE  EAEBRRKRSE BRI
o BRANBETTRERLECRE - MBS
RABRENANE  HEFHMEA T EFTHEE
EEEE-

RMERETBESHMASHEAN(EBETE
BIVETES ZRESENERRMETERR
& WRBRMTES  USEREFSHE
BRERAETFEEMERERBRL -
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continueq)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
group as at 30 June 2012 and of the group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Charter Road
Central, Hong Kong

28 August 2012

BEENSEE e

FE S RIATEFUAEDNEBES M BRERA
HEERBEENNETRE - EENER
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B ARFEENESNREF  BENLEFRY
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT Z& KR

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BZ 20126 H30 I FE
2012 2011
—g—-F —E——F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
KraE BEFor BT
Turnover B 7 2,888,657 2,509,698
Cost of sales SHE KA (2,499,073) (2,066,618)
Gross profit ER 389,584 443,080
Other revenue and other net income HE U A & E i iFUkzH 8 17,553 41,649
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHHER (297,273) (258,503)
Administrative expenses THEHA (132,415) (105,533)
Other operating expenses Hithice B A 25 (993) (3,383)
Operating (loss)/profit “ (|r), & F (23,544) 117,310
Finance costs AE AN 9 (3,650) (2,076)
Share of profit/(loss) of a jointly FE Ak HE [F 422 51 B B2 1Y
controlled entity mA(E518) 21 571 (2,236)
(Loss)/profit before taxation BELAT(B518) R F 10 (26,623) 112,998
Taxation HEZH 12(b) (9,405) (21,923)
(Loss)/profit for the year AFREGER) M (36,028) 91,075
Attributable to: BERN
Equity shareholders of the YNNI
Company 14 (36,028) 91,075
Non-controlling interests FERER - —
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(FB) &R (36,028) 91,075
(Loss)/earnings per share (HK$) SR (518) BRCET)
Basic and diluted BEARREE 16 (0.15) 0.38
Proposed final dividend BRIRERIRE 15 19,468 24,335

The notes on pages 78 to 172 form part of these financial

statements.

JIRET8ENT2EZ BEEMERAMBHRERZ

— 834D ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Z&2mkER

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BIZ 20124 6 A 30 H1LFE
2012 2011
—g—-F —=2——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFIT JBHETF T
(Loss)/profit for the year REE(FR) JwF (36,028) 91,075

Other comprehensive income for the AFEHMEEWE

year, net of nil tax M FE
Change in fair value of available-for- AHEENMBEEEAR
sale financial assets BEE2E2E (17) 1
Exchange differences on translation WEEBUINEBLNIBEIREK
of financial statements of MEEZEREE
operations outside Hong Kong 10,277 30,860
Other comprehensive income AEHMEEWE » BRBIE
fortheyear, netoftax 10260 30,861
Total comprehensive income AERHEINRLEE
for the year (25,768) 121,936
Attributable to: EER
Equity shareholders of the Company ARABTBRE (25,768) 121,936
Non-controlling interests FZERER - —
Total comprehensive income AEFEZHEINRLEEE
for the year (25,768) 121,936

The notes on pages 78 to 172 form part of these financial SIRB 78 2172 Rz B HMER AR B RK 2
3] 3
statements. )
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Z&MBEikRE

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EIE20126 H30 HILFE

2011
—E——F
Note HK$'000
BtaF BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERHEE
Fixed assets BE&E 17(a) 658,122 612,575
Leasehold land *E‘E +3h 18 89,281 88,514
Intangible assets mEEE 19 3,345 2,508
Interest in a jointly controlled H}"“%J@%&
entity HEH 21 52,668 52,097
Available-for-sale financial assets AEHENTIEEE 22 523 521
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 13(a) 346 119
Prepayments of fixed assets BEEERAMNRK 15,127 —
819,412 756,334
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories =7E 23(a) 584,521 821,278
Debtors, deposits and EEH&EE%X CBER
prepayments FEATRK 24 287,651 323,161
Amount due from a jointly FEH&,\H}"’"%@?
controlled entity E Q] 21 - 10,241
Derivative financial instruments OTiﬁnﬂIE 25 93 —
Tax recoverable FEURFR TR 3,098 =
Cash and cash equivalents REeERESEHE 26 451,117 170,579
1,326,480 1,325,259
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBERE
72 Bank loans RITER 27 347,000 228,000
Creditors, deposits received and SRR  EliRE
accruals M EESTE A 28 331,303 345,736
Amount due to a jointly controlled  FEAs +t [F#2 41| {E B2
entity ;I8 21 37,659 —
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA 25 - 2,311
Tax payable FE(S B 11,409 19,848
Other current liabilities HitRea s 29 256 282
e 727,627 596,177
NET CURRENT ASSETS BREEE 598,853 729,082
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT XME&EEREHER
LIABILITIES 1,418,265 1,485,416
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREERE
Other non-current liabilities HivIERBIEE 30 197 421
NET ASSETS FEE 1,418,068 1,484,995
CAPITAL AND RESERVES éﬁ&ﬁ%ﬁ
Share capital &N 31(a) 243,354 243,354
Reserves 1 1,163,863 1,230,790
Equity attributable to shareholders A2 &R
of the Company PE{L R 1,407,217 1,474,144
Non-controlling interests IR ER 10,851 10,851
TOTAL EQUITY SR 1,418,068 1,484,995

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on HKEEEEN _E——FEN A=+ NAtER

28 August 2012. RAETE -
LEUNG Joseph #Zid WHANG Sun Tze =L#
DIRECTOR EE DIRECTOR EE

The notes on pages 78 to 172 form part of these financial FIRE78E T2 B2 EEMT AR BREK 2
statements — &4 o
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION Bk =

For the year ended 30 June 2012

B Z2012%6 530 HIEFE
2012 2011
—E——%F —T——F
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
Kiat EEFIT BT T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Fixed assets BE&E 17(b) 1,463 1,033
Investments in subsidiaries el EPNGIE 3 20 1,254,432 1,255,022
Amounts due from subsidiaries i = NI 20 1,323,383 1,355,819
Available-for-sale financial assets HEENITEERE 22 16 14
2,579,294 2,611,888
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Debtors, deposits and BWERR - #E2 Rk
prepayments SEENEN 24 644 620
Amount due from a jointly FEU B E R
controlled entity TRIE 21 2,023 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEHE 26 522 6,815
3,189 10,435
CURRENT LIABILITIES RENEE
Creditors, deposits received and TR - EliRE
_accruals  RESER 28 13,322 12,780
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FREAE (10,133) (2,315)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT XHE&EEREHER
LIABILITIES 2,569,161 2,609,573
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBERE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FES B8 A~ B 7K I8 20 1,557,550 1,565,483
NET ASSETS FEE 1,011,611 1,044,090
CAPITAL AND RESERVES B2 R G
Share capital &N 31(a) 243,354 243,354
Reserves AT 33 768,257 800,736
TOTAL EQUITY IS4 1,011,611 1,044,090

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on BRHEEER _ZE——FNA-+TNBH#ER

28 August 2012. RRETIE -
LEUNG Joseph #Zi# WHANG Sun Tze EL#
DIRECTOR EZE DIRECTOR EE

The notes on pages 78 to 172 form part of these financial FIRE78E T2 B2 B EMT AR BEREK 2
statements — &4 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 8 #S 8%

For the year ended 30 June 2012

EiFE2012%6 530 HILFEZE
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
FERAATRR
Investment Share Non-
Share Share  Surplus revaluation ESOP  option Exchange  General Revenue controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve Total ~interests Total
R4 AIRRE BRE Fehk
Bx  ROEE BRRE EGEE  HRER i ERBRE -RER GaRE 83 i ait
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
E¥Tn  ERFT EETn  ERFT BRI ERFn BETn ERFn EEFr BT ERER
At 1 July 2011 “E-£¢f-A 43354 429423 2727 18 (6829 2568 87351 50,000 644532 1474144 10851 1,484,995
Loss for the year KEBE - = = = = = = - (36,028 (36,028) - (36,029
Change in fair value of avallable-  TIAtHiEMBIEERE
for-sale financial assets DREZED = - - (17) - - - - - {17) - (17)
Exchange differences REEBIUMERN
on transiation of HBEEMELL
financil statements of EREE
operations outside
Hong Kong © = = = = = 1021 © = 102 = 12
Total comprehensive income AE2ENGEE
for the year = = = (17) = - 02m - (36,028)  (25,768) - (25,768)
Equity settled share-based BRRAGENIRRA
fransactions ERNRS 2 = = = = - (1) = = - (1,70 - (4,10
Purchase of own shares BEBRERZ RS
for share option scheme 1) = = = - (15553 = = = - (15,559 - (15953
Transfer from revenue resene.  R-EKEAT
fo surplus reserve by HUEREEA
a subsiary BRER = = 12 = = = = - (12) - - -
201011 fnal dvidend proposed ~ #=%-8/——F
and paid RERE 15(0) = = = = = = = - (238%6)  (23,836) - (23,836)
At 30 June 2012 ZE-ZERAZTH 43354 429423 23739 1 (22382 79 97,628 50000 584656 1407217 10,851 1,418,068
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY &SRB aR

For the year ended 30 June 2012

EiF2012%6 H30 HILFEZE
Attributable to the shareholders of the Company
BERELTRR
Investment Share Non-
Share Share Surplus  revaluation ESOP option  Exchange  General  Revenue controlling
captal  premium  reseve  reseve  reserve  resenve  feseve  feserve  reserve Total interests Total
RE EIERE  ERE FER
Bx  BiEE EBRE  EMEE  SREE ke EXfE -RER Ladk aif i aif
Note  HKSO00 ~ HKS000  HKB000  HKS000  HK000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Wi BEFr BETr BEFL BETT BEFa BT BETn BETn BETn BETn BT BT
At 1 July 2010 ZE-RELA-H W33/ 49423 BT 7 (6829 - 56491 50000 592,083 1,388236 10851 12399087
Proft for the year RERA - = = = = = = - 9075 91075 - o107
Change In fai value of avalable- WA ENEEEE
for-sale financial assets MEZEE - - - 1 - - - - - 1 - 1
Exchange differences REEBIMERN
on tranglation of HBEEMELL
financil statements of EFZE
operations outside
Hong Kong - - - - - - 30,860 - - 30860 - 30,860

Total comprehensive income RE2ENEAT

for the year - - - 1 - - 30,860 - 91,075 121,936 - 121,936
Equity settled share-based BRRAGENIRRA

fransactions ERNRS 3 - - - - - 258 - - 268 - 288
2009/10 final dividend proposed A=A,/ -F&

and pad #8ms 15) - - - - - - - S a1y (4% -4l
Current year interim dividend HAEERDRE

declared and paid 15(a) - - - - - - - - (14517)  (14517) - (14517)
At 30 June 2011 Z5-—-E5xA=1H 2433654 429428 28721 18 (6,829) 2,568 87,351 50000 644,632 1474144 10,851 1,484995

The notes on pages 78 to 172 form part of these financial FIRE78E T2 B2 B EMTE AR BREK 2
statements. — 47 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Z&8IR&RER

For the year ended 30 June 2012

EIE20126 H30 HILFE
2011
—E——F
HK$'000
BETT
CASH FLOWS FROM RN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HeERE
Operating (loss)/profit &~ (E5a) RF (23,544) 117,310
Adjustments for: HE
Depreciation and amortisation IE R 10 57,690 54,212
Write-(back)/down of inventories FE (&E),SRE 23(b) (6,921) 7,752
Fair value loss on derivative TTELRMIENA R
financial instruments K58 25 993 3,383
Charge/(reversal of provision) for RIBIREM (@)
doubtful debts 10 236 (943)
Interest income FE WA 8 (5,069) (4,519)
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of HEBRTEEEEE, (k&)
fixed assets 8 1,498 (8,174)
Loss on disposal of HETHHERN
available-for-sale financial assets M EEEE - 11
Write off of long overdue ity 68 780 HA FE A9 =X
other payables 8 (1,470) —
(Reversal)/charge of equity settled (M) IRPRAGEE W LR
share-based payment expenses mEEEZNFEHR 10 (1,770) 2,685
Net unrealised exchange gain REBIMNSE R F SR (9,703) (26,031)
Change in working capital: EEE SN
Decrease/(increase) in inventories  F&EMEA (1L 40) 250,328 (489,375)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due  FE Uk £ [5] 322 41| {2 BE TR 18 7Y
from a jointly controlled entity B () 47,900 (1,5682)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors, EWER « e RFENFTW
deposits and prepayments WA (dEhn) 38,854 (119,652)
Decrease in creditors, deposits BRI - Sz E REST
received and accruals EHRS (13,503) (244)
Net cash settlement of derivative FTESMIECFES
financial instruments EEEE (3,397) =
Cash generated from/(used in) KEEBFEE(FTA)
operations MWiIRE 332,122 (465,167)
Tax paid EHE
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEEREH (12,744) (6,736)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong EATE RN IE (11,470) (14,097)
NET CASH GENERATED s ra
FROM/(USED IN) OPERATING & Fi#E (Fil)i$E
ACTIVITIES 307,908 (486,000)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS Z&IR&RER

For the year ended 30 June 2012

B ZE 20126 530 HILFE
2011
—E——F
HK$°000
BHF T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING #%&E 88
ACTIVITIES RERE
Interest received 2 UWFIE 5,069 4,519
Purchase of fixed assets and BEBRETEER
leasehold land HE i (108,517) (60,780)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE (950) (21)
Net proceeds from disposal of o 5 AT i S Y B A
available-for-sale EENEFEHE
financial assets — 20
Net proceeds from disposal of HEEREEENRE
fixed assets FRIEFER 765 11,422
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING & EEIRESRA
ACTIVITIES BE (103,633) (44,840)
CASH FLOWS FROM B EEN
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REk=E
Drawdown of bank loans RITE AV AN 119,000 162,038
Decrease in obligations under BMEREEEN
finance leases B (249) (221)
Purchase of own shares for EERELEBE 2KRH
share option scheme (15,553) —
Interest paid FTHRE (3,650) (2,076)
Dividends paid FTHERE (23,836) (38,713)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RIZEHMNIREFEEE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 75,712 121,028
INCREASE/(DECREASE) RE&ERFEEEHEN
IN CASH AND CASH whn,(iB)
EQUIVALENTS 279,987 (409,812)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #(£#)IR&
AT THE BEGINNING OF RE£%E
THE YEAR Frord 170,579 568,789
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EExZHMN
EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES B 551 11,602
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS £XIF&RK
AT THE END OF THE YEAR e EmaEes 451,117 170,579

The notes on pages 78 to 172 form part of these financial FIRE78E T2 B2 B EMTE AR BREK 2
statements. — 2843 o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EIE20126 H30 HILFE

1.

General Information

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
registered office and the principal place of business of the
Company is located at 21 Dai Fu Street, Tai Po Industrial
Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong Kong. During the
year, the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred
to as the “Group”) were principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of flour products, edible oil and

household and institutional cleaning products.

Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Statement of compliance

The Company’s financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. The
Company's financial statements also comply with
the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. These new and
revised HKFRSs do not have material impact on
the financial statements of the Group. The Group
has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting
period.

1.

— R

MIEEB)BRAA(AQA DA -
BREEBEMRINERAT - AAH
NEMPEERTZEXMHBUNEE
MAXBARBIENREH T3 -
FR - ARBAREKMBER R (B ARE
BNEEXBLHRER D HEY - B
A RARIEREZAR -

EEETBR
(a) E=rEH

AR HMBRECRETEBESR
MAaS((EB8SMAE ) rE
iz BEREBUMBHREER
((EEBMB/REER D KRB
BEREERZ @5 &SR
HER - BEEFER KRR
REBEREARSTRAREE
RAFRPIZREMHER - A2 F
BBEBETTEEBBEEXZM
ERABAEF LR EHR
Bl D2 BRFEERI - TXHE
AEBRMEESTHRME -

EREMASEHEME TRA
EERARFBAAEHFEERE
R AR BB HET R AR
A2 EBYBMEER - BLEH
IR EBRT 2 BB YR E ER
TEHAKENGSYBRRE
EEREE - TR AEEAR
BRMEMCEME RERZ
T ER R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
ElE20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2012 comprise the Group and the
Group’s interests in a jointly controlled entity.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies set out below:

— Available-for-sale financial assets (see note
2(f); and

— Derivative financial instruments (see note
2(9))-

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

2. EEEFHEER®

(b)

MRRERNEE

BE-Z-——FXA=1HLHF
EZiae iR EaERER LU
RAREE —RHERIESELE &

= ©

RSP BRETRAZAE
EEDBEERAE  HULTUHE
DREFEZEERD

- AHHENPREER
BEE2() - &

= TTE<m T B(RKMEE
2(g)) °

RERRTEETBYBREER 2
BHRE EEEAHTERR
2R EERBEREZIIHE
O E - e RBRR - AR E
KB BRIDREBEER
URZHEERBERTHEES
BoHEMREMAEL  BESER
1 B FE 2R BE 4K 18 HL At 38 1K B B
DEHAEERAEREERME
HHAE R B o B R AR
HEEERERE

EEESTEERN S EMGT M
BARR - MRS A HIERT R
ERVER-HE HYEFEHR
ZBEAER  WRETHEM
MARBEGELE  BEED
ERT VAR A AR R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (continued)

Judgements made by management in the
application of HKFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that

presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of

impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the Company, and in respect of which the Group
has not agreed any additional terms with the
holders of those interests which would result in the
Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability.

2. EEEHEER®

(b)

(c)

MRRERREE(HE)

EEEERATBYBREER
BAELHHMBRRAEEATE
B R AT T RESENEER
E M EE 4 Fm it o

Bt B 2\ Bl R IE i ARt am

MEARIDAREEEZES 2BE -
EXAEEAREERLX 2B
REERR AR FR P EEF
o WRABESFRE - REFhE
HRER > BT FITEZEER
ERORER -

REBRRZRENEREZH
BEHEESHEGSUBR
T HEZEFERKLBE-&
BRI EREREATZRER
BERRZMEE ZEARERE
EA - RERE S MRS
RRURE EEHRBEZBR
T EEABRZREEZRE
REE  SRERSREFER
2T EH o

FERERD  MFRADTAEEY
BERE-—MBARNERRE
BAESARELAREZEERN
REERZEFEMERTS
EEERHZERRESRER
YHFEEHEENTES -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(c)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between non-controlling interests and the

equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments
are made to the amounts of controlling and non-
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or
loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset (see note 2(f)) or, when appropriate,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in a

jointly controlled entity (see note 2(d)).

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(i)).

2. EEEFHEER®

(c)

Bt I 2\ Bl R IEdE AR HE R (4%

FERBEERSUBRRRDN
EEA - BERBAQRRERS
BAEZSMZ2% - FERKRR
BEEAKEERZIERS
BEXRRGEZEKERA 2
IRFERABNNBERERAEME
WEE D EEFERBRRERR
RO RERE AR o

EAXAEER-MEBLRERHER
SF . BFEREEHE AN
BEXZ AR MEFSERN
LAFA R 2 IR IR SR % IR 12 IR IR SR A
ENEHEEARREBEESZEE
BHEEHBATNMEFAZERERGEN
BRI

EXRKEXE—HE DR ZES
B BUEERHRZHEAR
BEAR TEBEABRRRR
WRRB K o K EEFIZATH
BAREFIEE B MRS EM
AU ARERR  MEE
WEBEBAUAAERIANS
MEEZHWMIE2)) R 0B
B HRABRERREN—B
Hh[E) 42 5 B B8 R AR (2 B MY &
2(d))

RAERAB 2T BEMRREZAR » B —
KM B DB 2 RE LKA BRI
BEEEDR(RME2(0K)(i) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(d)

Jointly controlled entity

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which
operates under a contractual arrangement between
the Group or the Company and other parties,
where the contractual arrangement establishes that
the Group or the Company and one or more of the
other parties share joint control over the economic
activity of the entity.

An investment in a jointly controlled entity is
accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method and is initially
recorded at cost and adjusted for any excess
of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair
values of the investee’s identifiable net assets over
the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the
investment is adjusted for the post acquisition
change in the Group’s share of the investee’s
net assets and any impairment loss relating to
the investment (see notes 2(e) and 2(k)(i)). Any
acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, whereas the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition post tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the jointly controlled entity, the Group’s
interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying
amount of the investment under the equity method
together with the Group’s long-term interests
that in substance form part of the Group’s net
investment in the jointly controlled entity.

2. EEEHEER®

(d) #HEEFEE

HEZESEEDAEEHRELME
REBEENZHRE X - FH
ZENZHITAAEHE - FH
BLE 2 Hih 5 HEEBZEE

EEEE ©

REE QA ZRELRE VKR
REREAETEAR  ROL
LA RAEEEEER
BRARKBETERFEE
BERBEERENN(WNE)ELH
EoBEERAEEEGTRES
FEEEWBAENEBREREZ
RENBEBEFLAZ(ZH
MizE2(e) & (K)(i) ° {EfAIAEUREE B
LHERANEYE FRAKEE
EEEREENRBERREZ
¥BEUREMREBENRES
BRRAER  MASEEEGE
REEHMZAWRENREEK
BREZEBERDRGEEZERER

MR ©

EREEEGHBESNER 2B
BHEBHERE  ARBEGE
mEERLET YATBER
BOMNEER  ERAKEARBITEE
HEEER - HAWREQFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
ElE20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(d)

(e)

Jointly controlled entity (continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its jointly
controlled entity are eliminated to the extent
of the Group’s interest in the investee, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When the Group ceases to have joint control over
a jointly controlled entity, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee
at the date when joint control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see
note 2(f)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over
(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition
date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a gain

on a bargain purchase.

2. EEEFHEER®

(d)

(e)

3 = H @S ()

AEBMEAHEZFEERE 22X
SIFEEX 2 RERERE  HEE
EEELARZEGERERDE
#H AEIABREZACERE
EHBRBEERD - LERRER
HERR o

EXREETBHEZHEGERT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill (continued)

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business
combination is allocated to each cash-generating
unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination and is tested annually for impairment
(see note 2(k)(ii)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during
the year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit

or loss on disposal.

Available-for-sale financial assets

At initial recognition and the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
listed equity securities classified as available-
for-sales financial assets are measured at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the investment revaluation
reserve, until the investment is disposed of or
determined to be impaired (see note 2(k)(i)), at
which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain or
loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

(e)

(f)

(9)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R Rz

For the year ended 30 June 2012
ElE20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(h)

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial
position at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). The cost
of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its present working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after a fixed
asset has been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit
or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situation where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the
future economic benefits expected to be obtained
from the use of the fixed asset, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of the fixed asset.

Construction in progress is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). Cost
comprises direct costs of construction, capitalised
borrowing costs and exchange differences to
the extent that it is an adjustment to borrowing
costs during the periods of construction and
installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases
and the construction in progress is transferred to
fixed assets when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the assets for their intended
use are completed. No depreciation is provided
for in respect of construction in progress until it is
completed and ready for its intended use.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings and leasehold 3-25 years
improvements
Plant, equipment, furniture and motor ~ 3-20 years

vehicles
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(h)

(i)

Fixed assets (continued)

Where parts of an item of fixed assets have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Both the
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any,
are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
(where the estimated useful life is finite) and
impairment losses (see note 2(k)(ii)). Expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The
following intangible asset with finite useful life is
amortised from the date it is available for use and
its estimated useful life is as follows:

Trademark

5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are

reviewed annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

() Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes

the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the

Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership
are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified
as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

Land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

()

Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of
assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased
asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such
assets are included in fixed assets and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance
charges, are recorded as obligations under
finance leases. Depreciation is provided at
rates which write off the cost of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where
it is likely the Group will obtain ownership of
the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in
note 2(h). Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy
as set out in note 2(k)(i). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged
to profit or loss over the period of the leases
so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining
balance of the obligations for each
accounting period. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

()

Leased assets (continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-
line basis over the period of the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BZE20124%6 530 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in equity

securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other

current and non-current receivables that

are stated at cost or amortised cost or

available-for-sale financial assets are

reviewed at the end of each reporting period

to determine whether there is objective

evidence of impairment. Objective evidence

of impairment includes observable data that

comes to the attention of the Group about

one or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment in an
equity instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables

(continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as

follows:

For investments in subsidiaries
and jointly controlled entities
including those recognised using
the equity method (see note 2(d)),
the impairment loss is measured by
comparing the recoverable amount
of the investment with its carrying
amount in accordance with note 2(k)
(i). The impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(Kk)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

— For debtors, deposits and prepayments
and other financial assets carried
at amortised cost, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition
of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based
on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset’s carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BZE201246 530 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of investments in equity
securities and other receivables
(continued)

For available-for-sale equity
securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that
is recognised in profit or loss is the
difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair
value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in
profit or loss in respect of available-
for-sale equity securities are not
reversed through profit or loss. Any
subsequent increase in the fair value
of such assets is recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. EEEHEER®

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) BEEREGE

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

94

(i) Impairment of investments in equity (i) PRFEE 5 1R 5 B A b FES
securities and other receivables BRACH B (48)
(continued)

Impairment losses are written off REEEREREN
against the corresponding assets EETHEEME
directly, except for impairment 1B% W R T
losses recognised in respect of RIREEEBZI
trade debtors, whose recovery is B 4% = 1 1R B R B
considered doubtful but not remote. MmIEMSE > AR
In this case, the impairment losses for BB B B AR

doubtful debts are recorded using an
allowance account. When the Group
is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors
directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to
that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the
allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. EEEER®

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the
following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased:

— fixed assets;

— leasehold land;

— intangible assets; and

= goodwill.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that
are not yet available for use and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually
whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(k)

Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its fair values less
costs to sell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in
profit or loss if the carrying amount
of an asset, or the cash-generating
unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the cash-
generating unit (or group of units) and
then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell,
or value in use, if determinable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(k) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of impairment losses is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to
profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

()] Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined on a
first-in, first-out basis and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an attributable

proportion of production overheads.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EIE20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

U]

(m)

(n)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recongised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Debtors, deposits and prepayments

Debtors, deposits and prepayments are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 2(k)(i)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting will be immaterial. In such cases, the
debtors, deposits and prepayments are stated at
cost less impairment losses for doubtful debts (see
note 2(k)(i)).

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
ElE20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Creditors, deposits received and accruals

Creditors, deposits received and accruals
are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which

case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, having

been within three months of maturity at acquisition.

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and cost of non-monetary
benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(a)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in share
option reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black-
Scholes model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the share
options were granted. Where the employees
have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the
share options, the total estimated fair value
of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability

that the share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for
the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share option reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of share options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve) except where forfeiture is
only due to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until
either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account)
or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(a)

(r)

Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when,
and only when, the Group demonstrably
commits itself to terminate employment or
to provide benefits as a result of voluntary
redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of
withdrawal.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they related to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EIE20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of
existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as
the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they related to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in
a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from goodwill not deductible for
tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating
to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in
the case of taxable differences, the group controls
the timing of the reversal and it is probable that
the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when the

liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separated
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the company or the group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the company or the group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(r)

(s)

Income tax (continued)

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in
each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled
or recovered, intend to realize the
current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefit is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(t) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in

profit or loss as follows:
(i) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are
delivered to the customer who has accepted
the goods and the related risks and rewards
of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

(ii) Rental income from operating leases
Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term.

(iii)  Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

(iv) Income from management services
Income from management services is

recognised at the time when the services
are provided.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(u)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange
rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items, including goodwill arising
on consolidation of operations outside Hong Kong
acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the exchange reserve.
Goodwill arising on consolidation of an operation
outside Hong Kong acquired before 1 January
2005 is translated at the foreign exchange rate that
applied at the date of acquisition of the operation
outside Hong Kong.

On disposal of a operation outside Hong Kong,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that operation outside Hong Kong is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

(v)

(w)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(if) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Group’s parent.
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(continued)

2. Significant Accounting Policies

(w) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third party and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close family members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influence by, that person in their

dealings with the entity.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
ElE20126 H30 HILFE

2.

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)
(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance
of, the Group’s various lines of business and
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services,
and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Possible Impact of Amendments,
New Standards and
Interpretations Issued but not
yet effective for the annual
accounting year ended 30 June
2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the accounting year ended 30 June 2012 and which
have not been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period. The Group is in the process of making
an assessment of what the impact of these amendments,
new standards and new interpretations is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial
position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EIE20126 H30 HILFE

3. Possible Impact of Amendments, 3.

New Standards and

Interpretations Issued but not
yet effective for the annual
accounting year ended 30 June

201 2 (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements — Presentation of
items of other comprehensive income

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial
statements

HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements

HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other
entities

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements
(2011)

HKAS 28, Investments in associates and
joint ventures (2011)

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits
Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2009 —
2011 cycle

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
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H
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Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on

or after

H T35k L& 5T HA R B

IR

EBGTTERE K UBTR) - 1 July 2012

HEREES®R — Hth2EKRER —E——-FtHA—H
2%

EBUBRELERNE I FE 1 January 2013

B SRR —E—=%—H—H

EEAVBEREENE+ 5K HEZH 1 January 2013

—g-=%-F-§

BRMBHRELNE+ 25 RAME
oD KE

1 January 2013
—Z2—=%—H—H

BRMBRELNE =5

DS fEIE

1 January 2013
—E-=%—H—H

BERIEAIE =LY - BRI
(B —FEET)

1 January 2013
—Z2—=%—H-—H

EREERE NS BEAAR
AEATNRE (=B —— FEET)

1 January 2013
—Z2—=%—A-—H

BEREHENFE T NFEUETA)
SEIEH

1 January 2013
—Z2—=%—H—H

BERMBRELN _ZZNE_2——
F2FENE

1 January 2013
—E-—=%—H—8H
ERUBRELENENS €T A 1 January 2015
—2-EF—H—H
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

4.

Accounting Estimates and
Judgement

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting

policies, management makes various estimates based on

past experiences, expectations of the future and other

information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty

that may significantly affect the amounts recognised in the

financial statements are disclosed below:

(a)

(b)

Depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account of their estimated residual value. The
determination of the useful lives and residual value

involve management’s estimation.

The Group assesses annually the residual value
and the useful life of the fixed assets and if the
assessment result differs from the original estimate,
such a difference may impact the depreciation for

the year.

Impairment of fixed assets, goodwill and other
non-current assets

Determining whether fixed assets, goodwill and
other non-current assets are impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the fixed assets, goodwill
and other non-current assets have been allocated.
The calculation of value in use requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating units and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.

If the estimation of value in use is different, any
reversal or further impairement will impact the

profits or losses of the Group.

Eatfliat R FIER

st FiEE 2 EZRIF

RERAEESTHER  EEESR
BRENER  HRERNEIRAME
B R ARG o et RRELED
ETERRAEEH B IRRARDHBE
TREAZE  ETXWE

(a)

(b)

EZELZENE

BEEEEMBREMGERGER
% LESFERAERFH
RTEE - AIMEAFHRNERE
BEHRES R EEBHNMEET

FEBBFHETEEEEEN
FAEERUEAFY  ER/H
MEARNGETAE - BEAEZRY
BYERFEINE -

BZEEE HE  URRMHIFR
BEERE

REBEEE - BE - URHAM
FRBEERRREAMGTEE
EE -BE URHMERBE
EFfPENASEESEMLNER
BE HAEEAEBEREFER
SEMGTRPRERSEEEN
MARRBEEREMFAERENS
WEHTEE o

MERBEZMESTHEE B
FERBRESHAEE 2 WER
B -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

4. Accounting Estimates and
Judgement (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c)

Income taxes

At 30 June 2012 and 2011, deferred tax assets
of HK$1,872,000 and HK$470,000 in relation to
unused tax losses were recognised respectively as
set out in note 13(a). No deferred tax asset was
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses
of HK$371,378,000 (2011: HK$291,381,000)
and temporary differences of HK$155,239,000
(2011: HK$157,166,000) arising from impairment
of certain fixed assets and leasehold lands due
to the unpredictability of future taxable profit
streams. The realisability of the deferred tax
asset mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the future
profits generated are less or more than expected,
a material write down or further recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be
recognised in the profit or loss for the period in
which such a write down or further recognition

takes place.

The provisions for Hong Kong Profits Tax in
respect of certain entities within the Group were
made based on the directors’ best estimation of
tax liabilities. Where the final tax outcome of these
transactions is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Eit it RH B w0

st FHEE 2 EERIF (&)

(c)

Friz#

R-ZB-—Z-—FR=-ZF——FRX
B=+HB REABEFBEZE
BRAELEHEEES A AB
#£1,872,000 T & & ¥ 470,000
Jt 2 R M E13() B
We HRTEEFEFTRRBAB
2 MIAESHBEEBBE
371,378,000 T (=& ——F : &
#5201,381,00070 ) R A ¥ & T
BEEERAET HREMEL
7 155,239,000t (= & — —
& B #157,166,000 7T ) B &
BMEEFEHER - BLEHBE
EXZEHEABERARTERNH
EEHR TR ERRTEHEIEA
H o BERRERBFERZN
FEH G EEHEEESEBNE
—SHRA EEEBIE—THE
RERZEZIBHER

FEBANETEREXZEFER
SHBEDRBEESHABAKIEA
BEZHEMRTFEL - HEBEX
SRBRRRBERRENIRLES
BAE - AEBEEESZEFD
BRERTEHBE 2 S5 RIELED
THREE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R Rz

For the year ended 30 June 2012
ElE20126 H30 HILFE

5.

Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency

risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group is also exposed to equity risk arising from

its equity investments in other entities. These risks are

limited by the Group’s financial management policies and

practices described below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
debtors, deposits and prepayments. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to
these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Credits are offered to customers following
financial assessments and established payment
records where applicable. Credit limits are set
for all customers and these are exceeded only
with the approval of senior company officers.
Customers considered to be with credit risk are
traded on a cash basis. General credit terms are
payment by the end of the month following the
month in which sales took place. Regular review
and follow up actions are carried out on overdue
amounts to minimise the Group’s exposure to
credit risk. Collaterals over properties are obtained
from certain customers. An ageing analysis of
the debtors is prepared on a regular basis and
is closely monitored to minimise any credit risk
associated with these debtors. The Group has
no significant concentrations of credit risk in view
of its large number of customers. The maximum
exposure to credit risk without taking account of
any collateral held is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance. The Group does not provide any
guarantee which would expose the Group to credit
risk. Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
debtors, deposits and prepayments are set out in
note 24.

HBEEEERARLE

FEBEEFEEBRTEHEE R
BEE  MNERREWER - AKETE
HEAMERFHREREMELENR
BRERE - AEBERIRUT S EEEBE
048 e % PR 751 Lt 25 f B

(a)

EEE R

AEENEERREIEZRAER
R RERFAMNR - EEEFT
VTEERE  UREERNLE
FERE FEFEEDNETH
BAEERREREEINN G
BWBER)MEE - FBETF
HREEERE  BERAASH
AERERFATBEERARE -
ERATFEREERR - BINR
TETRS - —REENHER
TENMBOTRERER - ATHE
ERLEERR  AEEEHR
NERANEHELRMBREST
B AEBERRERKRERDTU
BYERLERWTIR  TEE
HAORLERERBEENEE
Bk AEBERE TEFIE
MR - BEBBERERF
FEETRERENEESETE
o MIBMRRLBEEHEE
#9 B T (B 7 #1 BR A A1 R 1B 22
% KREAEEREZINEER
LR EPREEFENEM
EHm - AEETSRMAEEK
ZEERRNER - FARERE
BWER - REREARNEE
e - HARERRKME24FE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EIE20126 H30 HILFE

5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

The Group closely monitors its liquidity and
financial resources to ensure that a healthy
financial position is maintained such that cash
inflows from operating activities together with un-
drawn committed banking facilities are sufficient to
meet the requirements for loan repayments, daily
operational needs, capital expenditure, as well as
potential business expansion and development.

The Group reviews its strategy from time to time
to ensure that cost-efficient funding is available to
cater for the unique operating environment of each
subsidiary.

The following table details the remaining
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting
period of the Group’s and the Company’s non-
derivative financial liabilities which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to
pay:

5. MEEBEERARE

(&)

(b)

BN A & S

REBRYERHLREBDES M
HER  MERESRBEROME
R - EREEEEBHRESIW
A EREARBANRTERRE
B BEUEAEEENR HEE
B BARAX UREREBH

AEBRERNEMBERE - B
HNEEHEERFAUENRER
B ERHMBLRBEIENEE

EiE o

TREIAEBER AR BFITE
EREENRHRZRNBRENEH
A RBSNIBANRENE
FRESREEENAYER
R (M FR)EEE B BRNF
RABZFENAR)IUARSEH
RADBARERTRZREH
HETE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bk KMzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
BIZ 20124 6 A 30 H1LFE

5. Financial Risk Managementand 5. HAEREERAME

Fair Values (continueq) (4&)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBELEEE)
Group
156

2012 2011

t§-f £
Total Within ~~ Morethan  More than Total Within Mare than Mare than
contractual fyear  fyearbut  2yearshut contractuel 1year Tyearbut  2yearshut
Carrying  undiscounted oron within within Camying  undiscounted oron wihin wihin
amount cash flow demand 2years 5 years amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years
AHFRR  -ERER -Eit ZEE AHARRE  -EARA -ENE ZEIE
FEE ReREgE 580 BoENR BRENR BEE REneaE 980 B-Eln BEEMR
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$1000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
B Bkt AEFr BT AT A A oA A i

Bank loans ELES 347,000 348,063 348,063 - - 228,000 228,185 228,185 - -
Crecitors, deposit recelved and EfE BhEeR
acoruals &R 331,308 331,308 331,303 - - 345,736 345,736 345,736 - -
Derivative fiancil insruments fiESHIE - - - - - 2311 2311 2311 - -
Amount due to a jointy controled EftRALsER
enty 37,659 37,659 37,659 - - - - - - -
Obligatons under fiance leases HERERE 453 453 26 148 4 691 691 0 o1 180
16,415 TITAT8 717,281 148 4 576,738 576,923 576,502 28 180
Company
$4§

2012 2011

B g i B
Total Within ~ Morethan  More than Total Within Morg than Morg than
contractual fyear  fyearbut  2yearsbut contractual 1 year Tyearbut  2yearshut
Carrying  undiscounted oron within within Camying  undiscounted oron within within
amount  cash flow demand 2years 5 years amount cash flow demand 2years 5 years
SHFRR  -EhER ~FiL ZEIL FE -FARA -EiE ZEiE
FEE Rk g EcEMR BEENR BEE HeneLE 980 EcEAR BEEMR
HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS 000
BEFT AEFT AEFT AEFT AEFT QLA oA /A A i

Credtors, deposits received and EHER  CHRER

e %A 13,32 13,32 13,32 - - 12740 12750 12740 - -
The amounts due to subsidiaries amounted to INE EREAT B A B FE A S
HK$1,557,5650,000 (2011: HK$1,565,483,000) 1,557,550,000 t (=& — —F :
have no fixed term of repayment and will not be B84 565,483,000 7T) » tEFRIE
settled within one year. REECEHERIFTENR—FR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 201246 530 AL FE

5. Financial Risk Management and 5.

Fair Values (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
bank loans and bank deposits.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
interest earning financial assets and interest
bearing financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period:

2012
k- <Enk-

116

Effective
interest
rate p.a

BIRERNE
%

HEREBEEERARE

(#)
() FIZEER

REBOFRERERRERT
ERRIBITER

()  FIEKER
TRAFNHERRETE
-\

ERAQABDTEEERS
EEENFIRER

Fixed rate financial E&

assets: MBEE :

Time deposits E BT 2.52
Variable rate =

financial assets/ MBEE

(liabilities): (BfR) :

Cash at banks IRITIF 0.84

Bank loans RITER 1.85

Group
AEE
2011
—E——F
Effective

Carrying interest Carrying
amount rate p.a amount
IREE L SEES MR EE
HK$’000 % HK$'000
EEFT BT
226,130 2.48 41,876
224,987 0.74 128,703
(347,000) 0.95 (228,000)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 201246 530 A1 FE

5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Interest rate profile (continued)

Effective

rate p.a.

HIRFEN =

Variable rate
financial assets
Cash at banks

(Note)

RITER

Note: Effective interest rate of cash at banks is
minimal.

Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2012, it is estimated that general
increase/decrease ranging from 12 to 56
basis points (2011: 10 to 54 basis points)
in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, would increase/decrease
the Group’s loss after tax and decrease/
increase revenue reserve by approximately
HK$1,303,000 (2011: decrease/increase the
Group’s profit after tax and revenue reserve
by approximately HK$466,000).

interest

5. UBEBEERARE

(&)
(c) FIZEEPEE)

()  FIEHREX(E)

Company
AATF
2012 2011
ot —2——F

Effective

interest

rate p.a.

BRERN=R
% HK$°000 % HK$’000
ERFiT BETFT
0.00 522 0.00 6,815

Wi AERITE R R
EEHD ©

(i)  HEEST

R=ZZE—Z-—FXA=+
B 4srEFEREEmLEFH
S TRI2E6HF(=F
——F 10254 F)
EHMmESHER TS
WERT » AEEZBRB
#EEAIE M, R R
mEBEBRRD, M B
#£1,303,000 L (= &E——
FAEE2BRBEER
Rz @EESRD 18
#) 78 466,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EIE20126 H30 HILFE

5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(c)

(d)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the Group’s
loss after tax (and revenue reserve) and
other components of consolidated equity
that would arise from the exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the
Group at the end of the reporting period, the
impact on the Group’s profit after tax (and
revenue reserve) and other components
of consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest expense or
income of such a change in interest rates.
The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2011.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily

through sales, purchases, deposits, and borrowings

that are denominated in a currency other than the

functional currency of the operations in which they

relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are

primarily United States dollars (“USD”), Renminbi
(“RMB”) and Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”).

5. MEEBEERARE

(#)
(c) FIZEEE#H)
(i) BEEST(E)

L ESRE 2 AT HE A=
E kP EE RS RE AR
SEFRFTETASY
S B A BRB R B 1R (UL
BREB) UARGEERN
ARENSHRNERS
B ENREPELEHE
9 B A5 1R A OB (A0 1R 2% 1k
BINTE  LHHERAE
XHBBANFELEE
HEPE e Z2——F B
B—EESH -

(d) EHEE

AEEARHUASTEEQTNI
REEWLINERHENEE - &
B ROGERREENIIER
o SMNERMBEZRRBET - A
RN B -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 201246 530 A1 FE

5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i)

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and

the Company’s exposure at the end of the

reporting period to currency risk arising from

recognised assets or liabilities denominated

in a currency other than the functional

currency of the entity to which they relate.

(&)

HEERBEEERARE

(d) E¥REMEE)

()

REZINERE

TEREAEEREDFR
HIRLAARBE A R REEH
LS EBTENEEIE
ERREMEZ ZHNER
BafE A D AT o

Group (Expressed in original currency)

FRE(URE%RHE)
2011
“E—-F
HK$ RMB USD
'000 '000 '000
BEFL ARETT  Enfn
Debtors, deposits and FEWERSS
prepayments REREMNT 60 - 226 73 = 369
Cash and cash BeRBe
equivalents £5 13,637 8 4,239 401 507 2,566
Creditors, deposits AR
received and accruals gliEER
Bt ER (109) - (710) (116) = (241)
Amount due to group EREELT
companies (469,638) - - (468,117) - -
Company
(Expressed in original currency)
AAT
(MRE%H)
2011
—=E——F
UsSD
000
E
Fr
Cash and cash equivalents BREREELEEHE - 13
Creditors, deposits received TR » BUlize
and accruals R ESTE R - (239)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bk KMzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

B2 20126 H30 HILFE
5. Financial Risk Management 5. MBRAKREERARE
and Fair Values (continueq) (4)
(d) Currency risk (continued) (d) E¥REMEE)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) WEERIT
The following table indicates the TRINEEHRERES
approximate changes in the Group’s loss BEARFENHMEERY
after tax (and revenue reserve) in response HHEEJRENELE s &
to reasonably possible changes in the SEEzKRFEEEER(RKRE
foreign exchange rates to which the Group RIE)BEENBOEE -

has significant exposure at the end of the
reporting period.

Group
F5E
2012 2011
—T--F —B——F

120 Decrease in Increase

loss after in profit

Increase tax and Increase after

in foreign increase in foreign tax and

exchange in revenue exchange revenue

rates reserve rates reserve

BR#iE BBl

HE BEEVR HNE ORFIRKE

e 2 fok 455 28 Ex L A

% HK$°000 % HK$'000

BT T BrTFr

UsD 0.57 124 0.42 66

RMB 3.69 12,636 3.82 13,420
Decrease in foreign exchange rate with the NEEXRTRERE I ZEEHB
same percentage will result in effect on B nifEaRkEgEaa

profit or loss after tax and revenue reserve BRI ENEb I A

with the same magnitude but different
direction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in
the above table represent an aggregation
of the instantaneous effects on each of
the group entities’ profit or loss after tax
and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into HK$ at
the exchange rate ruling at the end of the
reporting date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rates had
been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments held by the Group which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting date. The analysis
excludes differences that would result from
the translation of inter-company balances
which form part of the net investment in
operation outside Hong Kong. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2011.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes

arising from investments in equity securities. As the

carrying amount of such investments is insignificant

compared to the total assets of the Group, the

management considers the exposure to equity

price risk to be insignificant.

5. MEEBEERARE

(#)
(d) &REEE)
(i) WEEST(E)

ER2U 2 DA RER
AEEREERUZTHINEE
EBAEZBRBRERNS
BRERERS  BREKRBET
ZERBRERBYELMER
ReBBENRTE -

BRESNIIBRERE
BERNENELREE
RPAFEZSAEET
HEBRBZ2EEERMT
B TEEEBREE
RUBEBUNERNFER
E-MONKEANBERE
MELAZEZH  —F——
FzaMNEREREE
T o

(e) MIxEREMR

AEERIREZHZRENKRE
ZETE HANRSERENEKE
EESASEENEERELTE
R EEHERARFTEEEAZHR
BRI TR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

() Fair value

(i)

Financial instruments carried at fair
value

The following table presents the carrying
value of financial instruments measured at
fair value at the end of the reporting period
across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 7, Financial
Instruments: Disclosures, with the fair value
of each financial instrument categorised
in its entirety based on the lowest level of
input that is significant to that fair value
measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

= Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measure using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

— Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets
for similar financial instruments, or
using valuation techniques in which
all significant inputs are directly or
indirectly based on observable market
data

— Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation techniques
in which any significant input is not
based on observable market data

As at 30 June 2012 and 2011, the financial
instruments of the Group carried at fair value
were listed and fall into level 1 of the fair
value hierarchy described above.

5. MEEBEERARE

(#)
(f ARE

(i) LR EIRZEMIA

TRIERBRRAAE
STENESRIE . RBE
B REERE LR
SRIE: WE  FIRE
DNARBEREN=ELKI
ETEESBMIAENAR
BENRRYEEANENE
EEAFENRERAR
Ao - BRHNESEW
T:

- E-R&SR):
REEEERTA
RER™ S 2 HRE
(REHE)FER
SfE -

- B REEM
ﬁmﬂlﬂﬁ’\\/ﬂ%m
52 B WARE
RERMFTEDR
B MBBEGER
o B A RC sz &
REELEEARTE
ZIBRABES
AHETSEERE
BEE -

- F=REER)
RIBEERMTE
DRE MBREML
1B $ 107 o ¥ P AC 8%
ZAREEEERKR
FEZEME AR
BHEERATBERED
B8 -

E-—FER-F——
NA=+A AEEL
AREHIROLBIA
tﬁﬁh&m%—@

EEHL\)-H?E’;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

5. Financial Risk Management and
Fair Values (continued)

() Fair value (continued)

(ii)

Financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

Apart from non-trade balances with
subsidiaries, all other significant financial
assets and liabilities are carried at amounts
not materially different from their fair values
as at 30 June 2012 and 2011. The carrying
amounts of non-trade balances with a jointly
controlled entity approximate the fair values
due to the relatively short-term maturity of
these financial assets and liabilities. It is not
meaningful to disclose the fair value of non-
trade balances with subsidiaries because
there is no fixed term of repayment.

Segment Reporting

The Group’s businesses are presented in the following
segments in a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of

resource allocation and performance assessment:

Food: the manufacture and sale of a broad range of food
products including flour and edible oil.

Detergent: the manufacture and sale of household and
institutional cleaning products.

5. MEEBEERARE

(#)
) AR{EE)

(i) AR ELIZ T I
ZHMBIR

BREMBARZHEZ S
BN REB-—ZFRZ
E-——5XA=tB M
FHMEAEMEERE
BENREEERAREL
BEAEZR -BHRART
MEEREBEREHERE
MR E W - B E S
B ZHFER G ZIRE
EEQRERE - ARNE
MBS AR ZEE Z AR
BEEENY  HKEH
DNABETESE -

6. DEEHE
REBEBRTHIDIBIR - EEEER

HARRREAEERSBITREEA
BRERIBERELAANES -

B HERIE-RIER BEE
MRERM -

BERM RERDERARIXRE
BRm e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EIE20126 H30 HILFE

6. Segment Reporting (continueq)

(a)

Segments results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“profit from operations”. To arrive at “profit from
operations”, the Group’s earnings are further
adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as head office or

corporate administration costs.

Segment assets include all tangible assets,
intangible assets, tax recoverables and current
assets with the exception of interest in a jointly
controlled entity, deferred tax assets and other
corporate assets. Segment liabilities include
tax payables, all trade creditors and accruals
attributable to the manufacturing and sales
activities of the individual segments, bank loans
managed directly by the segments, and other
current liabilities with the exception of amount due
to a jointly controlled entity and other corporate
liabilities.

6.

DEPEE =)

(a)

SEEE  EERAR

AAFEDBREREDAE2ZE
BREMS  AKERSETH
EEABRBTISEERST
FHREDM2EE  BEERR

& :

ARBEDBER 2 RTFZES
[EEBEN] - RTHHIEEE
A AEBE BRI EPE
BRMER 2 2EE (WALQF
HETHAAR)EHE -

o

PHMEERREHBAENEE - &
FEE BUBRERBEE
M EEG EEER  EERE
EERHEMEREERN - 28
BEEEEBER I MBZEER
HERHBREZERABNK - ES
BAERRKRESER 28 EE
BEZRTER - UREMR
BE HEHAEZFERR AT
EEERRID
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BIZ 20124 6 A 30 H1LFE
6. Segment Reporting (continueq 6. DEREE =)
(@) Segments results, assets and liabilities (@) S9BEE -BEEREREE)
(continued)
Information regarding the Group’s reportable BESETHREEBASRMHZE
segments as provided to the Group’s most senior EREDBERIT -
executive management is set out below.
2012 2011
—g-Cf “B-—-F
Segment Segment
Food Detergent Total Food Detergent Total
‘e RERAER DR Rm BRAR A EBE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT T 2T AT xR
Revenue from BIREFZ
external customers A 2,506,067 375,718 2,881,785 2,161,351 341,259 2,502,610
Reportable segment ~ EEHESH2
(loss)/profit from cE(B8)/
operations et (9,394) 30,904 21,510 119,125 37,748 156,873
Interest income FEWA 3,905 1,164 5,069 3,514 900 4,414
Finance costs A& A (3,634) (16) (3,650) (2,062) 14) (2,076)
Depreciation and FE
amortisation for HER
the year i (52,793) (1,947) (54,740) (47,856) (1,5619) (49,375)
Other material profit ~ EfIEE
or loss items: B&ER
— Exchange gain - Bl 8,137 433 8,570 22,339 934 23,273
— (Charge)/reversal  — RIBER
of provision (%)
for doubtful J/BE
debts (233) (3) (236) 681 262 943
Income tax charge BIEXH (1,236) (7,238) (8,474) (4,897) (13,975) (18,872)
Reportable segment  EE#{E
assets PHW2EE 1,918,596 222,221 2,140,817 1,864,287 194,274 2,058,561
Reportable segment  BfERE
liabilities P2 ERE  (702,526) (57,226)  (759,752)  (596,796) (68,295)  (665,091)
Additions to non- £
current segment kY
assets during the AEITRE
year B 108,968 499 109,467 55,5617 4,549 60,066
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BIE2012F 6430 HILFE
6. Segment Reporting continued) 6. TEHER =
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) FEBREDEBUWAN- B
revenue, profit or loss, assets and BEREBEZHEGEK
liabilities
2011
—E——F
HK$’000
JBMTF T
Revenue PN
Reportable segment revenue EEREDEBZUA 2,881,785 2,502,610
Service and rental income R#ERBESUWA 6,872 7,088
Consolidated turnover RESER 2,888,657 2,509,698
Profit it Fl
Reportable segment profit from  FEERE DI 2 &
operations Y Al 21,510 156,873
Share of profit/(loss) of a jointly — FEAG Tt 342 & & 2
controlled entity w=FL (EE) 571 (2,236)
Finance costs & AR (3,650) (2,076)
Unallocated exchange loss ROz EHEE (37) (66)
Unallocated head office and AOmMZB AT R
corporate expenses TEER (45,017) (89,497)
Consolidated (loss)/profit before #R& B AT (BE) %55
taxation (26,623) 112,998
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets EEREDH2EE 2,140,817 2,058,561
Elimination of inter-segment DEEEW R Z
receivables K 35 (101,763) (88,679)
2,039,054 1,969,882
Interest in a jointly controlled HEHEFELE
entity R 52,668 52,097
Amount due from a jointly PR E = SIE R
controlled entity IE - 10,241
Deferred tax assets EIERIBEE 346 119
Unallocated head office and PN i NS
corporate assets TEEE 53,824 49,254
Consolidated total assets REEEE 2,145,892 2,081,593
Liabilities aE
Reportable segment liabilities EEREDB2EE (759,752) (665,091)
Elimination of inter-segment DEPRE NI Z
payables Eiig | 101,763 88,679
(657,989) (576,412)
Amount due to a jointly FEAS H B IR HI{E g 2l
controlled entity (37,659) —
Unallocated head office and F N ik S NETD S
corporate liabilities TtEEE (32,176) (20,186)
Consolidated total liabilities meHEasE (727,824) (596,598)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 201246 530 A1 FE

6. Segment Reporting (continueq)

(c)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about
the geographical location of (i) the reportable
segment’s revenue from external customers
and (i) the Group’s fixed assets, leasehold land,
intangible assets, interest in a jointly controlled
entity and prepayments of fixed assets (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of
customers is based on the location at which the
services were provided or the goods delivered. The
geographical location of the fixed assets, leasehold
land and prepayment of fixed assets is based on
the physical location of the assets, in the case of
intangible assets and goodwill, the location of the
operation to which they are allocated, in the case
of interest in a jointly controlled entity, the location
of operations.

6. DEBEFE =)

(c)

2012
g5
The
People’s

Republic

of China
(“The
PRC”)
hE X
HK$°000
EBFT

Reportable segment’s
revenue from

external customers

Specified non-current
assets

FEREDHE

IREF 2

WA 643,216 2,238,569
EEFRBEE

76,531 742,012

2,881,785

818,543

wE &

TREI WL EERBE()
FERESMAIREF 2
A RNAEEBEEEE - HE
1 BPEE - HEEZESER
BEkEEEERMNR(EER
RBEE]) - EFHNABHET
RIBRBEHNEWE L Z I
MEE -BEEE - HETHRK
BEEERANRNBiTERR
HFEtmE - BRLEERBE
B9 T B8 ith 188 TH AR $5 E 1 0 BU 2 Y
EEMBTE - HEZRG ERE
mNIEEREEEEMIM

=

&E °

2011
—2——F

Hong
Kong  The PRC Total
&  HEAE CES
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
BEFT BETT BETn
526,996 1,975,614 2,502,610
85,027 670,667 755,694
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 201246 530 AL FE

7. Turnover

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out on pages

173 to 175.

Turnover represents the net invoiced value of goods
supplied to external customers as well as service and
rental income. An analysis of the Group’s turnover is set

7. B

AABB—EREZRKRQLR  HEHMBAQ
AN EBEKFINREITIEEE75
E o

EXFARETHIINEFNERNESR
FEMBRBRESWA - REBNEXE
BOMUMT -

out below:

2012 2011

—Eg——-F —E——F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT BT T

Sales of goods HEER 2,881,785 2,502,610
Service and rental income RIERBLSUWA 6,872 7,088
2,888,657 2,509,698

Other Revenue and Other Net

8. HAbWr A R H fthiFWras

Income
2012 2011
—E—_F —E2——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT
Management fee income BEEWA 1,345 2,690
Sales of scrapped materials HERER 2,068 1,483
Net (loss)/gain on disposal of fixed HERBEEEF(FE), W
assets (1,498) 8,174
Interest income FE WA 5,069 4,519
Net exchange gain INEETE 5T U R 8,533 23,207
Reversal of provision for doubtful RIFREERD
debts - 943
Write off of long overdue other i £ 380 H B A R
payables 1,470 =
Miscellaneous Hith 566 633
17,553 41,649
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bk KMzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BLZ 20126 30 HILFEE
9. Finance Costs 0.
Interest on bank loans wholly RAEFAZBEEZ|RIT
repayable within five years BHEHE

=g S

2012 2011
—E—C_F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BT T

3,650 2,076

The Group’s average borrowing interest rate was
approximately 1.23% (2011: 0.95%) during the year.

REEREENFHIEEEFEEE1.23%
(ZZE——%F :0.95%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EIE20126 H30 HILFE

10. (Loss)/Profit Before Taxation

(Loss)/profit before taxation
is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):

Staff costs (including directors’

remuneration — note 17)

— Wages, salaries and
allowances

— (Reversal)/charge of equity
settled share-based
payment expenses (note 32)

— Defined contribution
retirement plans

Auditors’ remuneration

— Audit service
— Tax and other services

Depreciation of fixed assets
Amortisation of leasehold land
Amortisation of intangible assets
Net exchange gain

Charge/(reversal of provision) for
doubtful debts

Operating lease rental of properties
Cost of inventories (note 23(b))
Net proceeds from disposal of

fixed assets
Less: Carrying value of fixed assets

Net loss/(gain) on disposal of
fixed assets

Rental income

10. BR¥iai(B548), i F

2012 2011
—E—-%5 —T——F
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT T
BFL A (E518), &R
2R (5t A) -
BIRN(BEESHE
— BEE11)
—IE -Hek
JEBL 215,483 158,946
— (BE) 1BBEAEEN
LU BB/ 2 A=
BR (M 32) (1,770) 2,685
— EFEMHFCEIR
g 17,976 14,942
231,689 176,573
BN &
— RER%E 1,491 1,046
— B R EABRE 1,714 _
3,205 1,046
EEEENE 54,929 51,698
FHE L e 2,648 2,403
B EERE 113 111
TEHMNEOE S (8,533) (23,207)
RERRERE(EE)
236 (943)
KEHEWENESER 4,835 4,077
BFERAR (K 23(0b)) 2,499,073 2,066,618
HEBRTEEENERIE
SHEE (765) (11,422)
B BEEEERTE 2,263 3,248
HEBTEEEER (k&)
1,498 (8,174)
HEWA (6,872) (7,088)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bk KMzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 201246 530 A1 FE

11. Directors’ and Senior
Executives’ Emoluments

(a) The directors’ emoluments of the Company and its
subsidiaries calculated in accordance with Section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are

(a) WEFB(XAMKH)E
—BAT R EZARFARA

MEBLARNESMSRENT :

as follows:
Share-
Basic Housing based
salary/ Retirement benefits  payments
Directors’ schemes and (Note (xi)
fee contributions  allowances HEHE
&/  Bonuses B EEGH  ERZHR
- E20k Ted HEEES REM (W)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Vit i Vit i EBFT BT BT
Executive directors BiTEs
LEUNG Wai Fung (Note ))  RER(# 1) 2,160 174 191 687 (839) 2,313
LEUNG Joseph (Note (i) 2R 453 - 2 - - 455
Non-executive directors ~ JH{TES
WHANG Sun Tze BLE 200 - - - - 200
KWEK Leng Hal (Note (i) BB i) 263 - - - - 263
TAN Lim Heng R 200 - - - - 200
TSANG Cho Tai B 260 - - - - 260
DING Wai Chuen (Note (i) TE& () 200 - - - - 200
Independent non-executive  BIFHTES
directors
LO Kwong Chi, Clement BES (W)
(Note (v) 303 - - - - 303
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (Note (vi)  ERUE(#& 1) 265 - - - - 265
AU Chee Ming (Note (vi) BRBWZ 1) 25 - - - - 225
Yearended 30 June 2012 =F-—EKB=+ALEE 4,529 174 193 687 (839) 4,744
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BLZ 20126 30 AL EE
11. Directors’ and Senior . BEERERITHAE
Executives’ Emoluments (ontinueq) il & )
(a) (continued) (@) (&)
Group
158
Housing ~ Share-based
Retirement benefits payments
Basic salary/ schemes and (Note (xj)
Directors’ fee contributions ~ allowances NRHE

F2/  Bouses  RAEN  RERN  ERR 2011
E3hs L HEER RE% (W) %%
HKS000  HKSO000  HKS00D  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$(000
BRfn  ERfn ERTn ERTan BT ERTx

Executive director HiTEE
LEUNG Wai Fung (Note ()  RER (/) 2,007 174 206 713 839 4219
132

Non-executive directors FnES

WHANG Sun Tze BLE 200 - = = = 200
KWEK Leng Hai (Note (i) BB ) 260 = = = = 260
TAN Lim Heng R 200 - - - = 200
TSANG Cho Tai B 260 - - - - 260
DING Wai Chuen (Note (i) TES®(#Z() 200 - - - - 200

.

Independent non-executive  BIEHITEES

directors
LO Kwong Chi, Clement (Note (v) BES(##/1)) 300 - - - = 300
LO Kai Yiu, Anthony (Note (vi) ~ BRUE(H 1) 260 = = = = 260
AU Chee Ming (Note (vi]) BERB ) 220 - - - - 220
Year ended 30 June 2011 “E--EXB=THLEE 4127 174 206 73 839 6,119
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

11. Directors’ and Senior
Executives’ Emoluments (continueq)

(a)

(continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

Mr. LEUNG Wai Fung resigned as group
managing director and executive director of the
Company on 1 March 2012.

Mr. LEUNG Joseph was appointed as group
managing director and executive director of the
Company on 2 May 2012.

Mr. KWEK Leng Hai was appointed as chairman
of the Board Nomination Committee (“BNC”) with
effect from 1 April 2012. Mr. Kwek was acting as
chairman of the Board Remuneration Committee
(“BRC”) from 1 July 2011 to 31 March 2012 and
acting as member of the BRC with effect from 1
April 2012.

Mr. DING Wai Chuen was re-designated as
executive director from 1 March 2012 to 31 May
2012 and as non-executive director with effect
from 1 June 2012.

Mr. LO Kwok Chi, Clement was acting as member
of the BRC from 1 July 2011 to 31 March 2012
and acting as chairman of the BRC with effect
from 1 April 2012.

Mr. LO Kai Yiu, Anthony was appointed as
member of the BNC on 1 April 2012.

Mr. AU Chee Ming was appointed as member of
the BNC on 1 April 2012.

Basic salary/directors’ fees — The amounts
paid and payable to non-executive directors are
directors’ fees. The amount paid and payable to
executive directors was basic salaries.

Bonuses paid/payable for the year were
performance related.

There was no arrangement under which a director
had waived or agreed to waive any emoluments.

These represent the estimated value of share
options granted to the director under the
Company’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based
payment transactions as set out in note 2(q)
(i) and, in accordance with that policy, include
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in
previous year where grants of equity instruments
are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted are disclosed under
note 32.

1. EERSHRITHRAS

kS

(a)

(4%

m=

)

()

(0

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Bt -
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EEFMEES(FMZEE
ghEE ¥H=-ZT—=F
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BN/ BAzEHS EE2H
T — FUTESUESES
BB - HTEZUHE
FAUE -

REEZEN /BNREAD
REBETE -

WHETIESHERRE S
REWEBHMENZTHE -

EHERBEARQTBRE
ERTES ZRENME
B ZEREEEDRER

%lﬁ?@%%%iﬁﬁi
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HENEHREMTE &
FEERBACHEENRET
B RIEZBEMEE LA

FERENEHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bk KMzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
BIZ 20124 6 A 30 HILFE

11. Directors’ and Senior
Executives’ Emoluments (continueq)

(b) The five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals included one
(2011: one) director, details of whose remuneration
are set out above. The remaining employees’
emoluments are analysed as follows:

Salaries, bonuses, housing benefits % » #£4L - EEEF

TIEREBANESEE -—RE
B(CZE-—F: —F) MEew
HBEEIREX - R T RENFH
EHBUT ¢

2012 2011
—F-C°F —
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT EBETT

and share-based payments EURGAER
INES 7,747 8,318
Retirement schemes contributions  3R{R &5t &Ik 172 165
7,919 8,483

The number of employees whose remuneration fell
within the following bands was:

MeBTIHRENESEHE W
T

2012 2011

HK$ B HE —E—_%f —E——F

1,500,001 — 2,000,000 1,500,001 — 2,000,000 2 3
2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2,000,001 — 2,500,000 2

4 4
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

12. Taxation

(a)

(b)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at
the rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the respective
estimated assessable profits of the companies
within the Group operating in Hong Kong during
the year.

Taxation outside Hong Kong represents income tax
charge on the estimated taxable profits of certain
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China, calculated
at the rates prevailing in the respective regions.

All enterprises engaged in the primary processing
of agricultural products are exempted from PRC
enterprise income tax. As a result, the profits
from flour mill operations are exempted from PRC
enterprise income tax for the years ended 30 June
2012 and 2011.

Other subsidiaries operating in Mainland China are
subject to income tax rates ranging from 24% to
25% (2011: 22% to 25%).

The income tax charge represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred taxation charges
as follows:

12. 18

(a)

(b)

EEBEENEB AT ZFE
EHEDRBEFAGBTERS R
FIZERHE165%(ZF——F
16.5%) 5 1R °

BBUINBBERDEAELEE
2% T M B A R fh 5 R BLE
Nz ER 2B RAENHRE
X e

FrEEPBRELEEEERIM
T hEIERRLEFRBH -
H It - 4% 58 FT BRELZ & F AT
RZE——FN-_E——FEH
GBI ARFE 2 R EFTBH -

RAERELE CHEMHE LD
o FARAMEHBEB24%
B%(ZF — — F:122%ZF
25%) °

FER s HAREBARERIEL
BIHMAAM - HAMWT :

2012 2011
—Eg—_F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BETT
Current tax: ANERIE
Hong Kong taxation BEARFIE 1,837 5,977
Over-provision in respect of LRI E 2 BERRE
prior years (33) (1,113
1,804 4,864
Taxation outside Hong Kong EBLUINIE 7,260 15,453
Under-provision in respect of DRIFEZ
prior years TREE 568 338
7,828 15,791
Deferred taxation (note 13(a)): ERERLIE (B7EE 13(a) -
Origination and reversal of TRFEENEER
__temporary difference  E#& (27) 1,268
9,405 21,923
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BIZ 20124 6 A 30 HILFE
12. Taxation (continued) 12. *HIE (#&)

(c)  The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to (c) HEWzmRFKRBAEER)
the (loss)/profit before taxation per consolidated AR F E 2 FLIE X P E A0
income statement as follows: T :

2011
—E——F
HK$’000
BT
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREL AT (B518) R F (26,623) 112,998
Notional tax on (loss)/profit before  1&iE AR
taxation, calculated at the rates BB EHE
applicable to profits in the tax BB AT (B518) & Fl
jurisdictions concerned Z B 1,086 24,694
Tax effect of non-deductible B LRI
expenses 2B 490 8,046
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue  EERH U A TS
=% (2,266) (3,974)
136 Tax effect of tax losses not RFUBRNBISE R
recognised 2R E 18,789 2,039
Tax effect of utilisation of unused tax 18 F A LLATE E R F LA
losses not previously recognised AIEEIE 2 B
g (396) (3,387)
Effect of tax concessions BHEERzTE (9,144) (4,905)
Tax effect of (profit)/loss attributable FE{L + [5]42 4 {E 82
to a jointly controlled entity CaF) BiEz
MBEE (94) 369
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BBIEEZTRE,
(B BB 535 (775)
Others Hit 405 (184)
Tax charge for the year REERBHXH 9,405 21,923

(d)  The Inland Revenue Department of the Hong Kong (d BERBER(HBDEAEESR

Special Administrative Region (the “IRD”) has FRABETHRBEES - THKE
initiated a tax audit on certain group companies EEHERUA > AEBHR_-TF
and the Group had paid a total of HK$10,908,000 — S E=EE_EER EAE
to the IRD under the protective assessments ZABEFENREMFTARBE
against certain subsidiaries for the years of #0147 %% 10,908,000 JT °
assessment from 2002/03 to 2005/06 pending the
outcome of the tax audit.
After taking professional advice from its tax adviser, REEFEERNEXERE
the Group has submitted a settlement proposal for AEBEZZE-——FXAEXRT
the consideration by the IRD in June 2012 pending —MHBHREFREZE - B
for reply from IRD. Appropriate provision has been WEFCEEENERME -

made in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

13. Deferred Taxation

(a)

Group

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities

recognised in the consolidated statement of

13. iIEERHIE

(a) ZF&KHE

EHES MBI R D ERNIEL
BR(EE) BERERAFE

financial position and the movements thereon RURBIEE2SB0OT :
during the current and prior years are as follows:
Accelerated
tax Tax
depreciation Provisions losses Total
mEHHHE B HBES ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRTFT BEFT BT BRFT
At 1 July 2010 “E-ZEtA-H 579 (1,387) (679 (1,387)
(Credited)/charged to income statement ~ RIKERA (Gt A) /ZE

(note 12(b)) (B 120) (109) 1,268 109 1,268
At 30 June 2011 —2--£5xF=1H 470 (119) (470) (119
At 1 July 2011 —£—-%tA-AH 470 (119) (470) (119)
Charged/(credited) to income statement ~ RIRERAZH,/ (3T A)

(note 12(b)) (B 120) 1,402 (227) (1,402) (227)
At 30 June 2012 ZE-ZERA=TH 1,872 (346) (1,872) (346)
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax BAT AR SE B IR A5 8R4 5 73 B
balances for financial reporting purposes: BMESIRMA -

2012 2011

—F—-fF —B——fF

HK$°000 HK$'000

EEFT BT T

Deferred tax liabilities BELEHREEE = -
Deferred tax assets ELEBIREE 346 119
346 119
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

13. Deferred Taxation (continueq)

(a)

Group (continued)

The Group is liable to withholding tax on dividends
to be distributed from subsidiaries in the Mainland
China in respect of their profits generated on or
after 1 January 2008. At 30 June 2012, temporary
differences relating to the undistributed profits
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the Mainland
China amounted to HK$278,397,000 (2011:
HK$255,030,000). Deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised in respect of the tax that would
be payable on the distribution of these retained
profits as the Company controls the dividend policy
of these subsidiaries and it has been determined
that it is probable that profits will not be distributed
by these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

At 30 June 2012, the Group had unused tax losses
of HK$382,726,000 (2011: HK$294,230,000)
available for offset against future taxable profits.
A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the tax losses of HK$11,348,000
(2011: HK$2,849,000). No deferred tax assets
have been recognised in respect of the remaining
HK$371,378,000 (2011: HK$291,381,000) due to
the unpredictability of future taxable profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$59,326,000 (2011: HK$15,433,000) that will
expire within five years. Other losses can be carried
forward indefinitely.

At 30 June 2012, the Group had temporary
differences of HK$155,239,000 (2011:
HK$157,166,000) arising from impairment of
certain fixed assets and leasehold lands provided
on 31 December 2001. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of these temporary
differences due to the unpredictability of taxable
profits streams against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised in the
foreseeable future.

Temporary difference arising in connection with a
jointly controlled entity is insignificant.

13. BEHIE =)

(a)

A8RE (&)

TAEBEFEBEALE ZHB L
AERPIKR=-ZEZTNEFE— 8 —
BTSN AEATINHB
MR-ZB——FXA=+H ' EH
AEERFEER KB A RR
PEHAENRGEBEEZEERBE
278,397,000t (= & — — & :
7 #5255 030,0007T ) ° HH AR
DAEEFZEM B L AR ER
o WERERT BREZEM
BARRAESTIEDIRERF
& 3 R B 7K 5% % R A BE A
2B ERIELERIBEAE -

R-ZEB—Z—ZHFXA=+H &
& H £ B %382,726,000 5t (=
£ — — & 7B #294,230,000
7T ) B9 AT A A 3K 30 oK 2R FE SR B
FMPHKEEE - EPRZER
R T B 11,348,000 T (=
T — —F: B #¥2849,0007T )
MEZEREEE - MANBY
371,378,000 t(= & — — F :
7 %£291,381,000 7T ) #Y AT 3K 0
BB BARRKZFHTIAIEER
Mo U ARBERIBIELESR
HEE - 3 KRERVBKES
B EB 59,326,000t (=F
— — 4% : B ¥ 15,433,0007T) 1Y
EBEEREFAZE  HMEE
] LASE PR HA AL B AR 1 o

RZEE—F+=ZA=+—8"
rEEBAETEEEEREEL
WERBERE  ZERER-F
——®X~"A=+HABKEEBEXE
7 #5155 239,000 (= & — —
F . B #157,166,0007C ) B &
BHEEE EARTEFNARA
FEREM  FIATERZERERR
EEFIEEE o

B2 £ 5] 422 {EL B A B 1 T B e 22
BUFEAX o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BLZ 20126 30 HILFEE
13. Deferred Taxation (ontinued) 13. IREHIE =)
(b) Company (b) EAF
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities EFERRRPERVIELRIE
recognised in the statement of financial position (BE) BBEREXREERUA
and the movements thereon during the current and FENESENT :

prior years are as follows:

Accelerated

tax
depreciation Tax losses Total
RIS HBEE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 July 2010 —E-ZEFtHA—H 77 (77) =
Charged/(credited) to AU RAZE,
i tat t (FtA) 34 34 —
income statemen (34) 139
At 30 June 2011 —E2——%7XA=tH 111 (111) —
At 1 July 2011 —ZE——%tHA—H 111 (111) -
Charged/(credited) to RikERAZE,
income statement (T A) 78 (78) -
At 30 June 2012 —E-ZHXA=+H 189 (189) -
14. Loss Attributable to 14. R A BIREE{LEE
Shareholders of the Company
Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company included AATBREEEEECEESTERAD
a loss of HK$6,357,000 (2011: loss of HK$4,111,000) T IR A B 6,357,000 FIETIE (=
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of T — —F  EIEE% 4,111,000 7T) (M
the Company (note 33). £¥33) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

15. Dividends

(@)

15. B2

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

company (excluding the amount paid to shares held

by the Group under the ESOP reserve) attributable

(@)

FRERMLARRKRE (NRZMATF
AEERETERESRMBBETE
B2ROBNEH)

to the year
2012 2011
—T--F —E2——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
EETIT JBHEF T
Nil interim dividend declared and REBERR XA H
paid per ordinary share BE(=ZZ——F:
(2011: HK$0.06 per share) HRB0.06 T) — 14,517
Final dividend proposed after the R BHEURE 2 R E
end of the reporting period of BESKR0.08T
HK$0.08 per ordinary share (ZZ2——F : 8K
(2011: HK$0.10 per share) BH0.107T) 19,069 24,196
19,069 38,713

The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period has not been recognised as a
liability at the end of the reporting period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the

company (excluding the amount paid to shares held
by the Group under the ESOP reserve) attributable
to the previous financial year, approved and paid

during the year

Final dividend in respect of
the previous financial year,
approved and paid during
the year, of HK$0.10 per share
(2011: HK$0.10 per share)

BER — B BEFE
2 Bk &k X8R
HRE  BREBY
010 (= & — —
F:8KRBH0.10
JT)

HIRREIRE 2 RHRE > R
ERBARERAEE -

HA A RE HE % S A B A — {E B BR
ERMARATARREE (KX
RFAEERETBRES RMH
BTHAEZRONEE)

2012 2011
—T—=F —EF——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEFT BETFT
23,836 24,196
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
ElE20126 H30 HILFE

15. Dividends (continued)

16.

In respect of the final dividend attributable to the year

ended 30 June 2011, the difference between the final

dividend proposed and paid during the year represents

the dividend to the shares acquired and held by the Group

under the ESOP reserve for the purpose of satisfying

the exercise of share options granted under the Group’s

share option scheme (note 31(a)).

(Loss)/Earnings Per Share

(a)

(b)

Basic

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per
share is based on the loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$36,028,000
(2011: profit of HK$91,075,000) for the year and
the weighted average of 239,260,000 (2011:
241,961,000) ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

15. IxB @)

BE-ZE-——FX"A=ZtHZKRHR
B AEBRRBED XA ZRENE
B AXRAIEERBRESS(HE
31(a) WBEIRMEER FHBKRER
WITENFRGMISEEETBRELR
RENWRDAEHRE

16. Bk (&5R) BF

(a) E=X

BERENEGE) BFR
BAAGABRREMGERBE
36,028,000 t( =& ——F ' &
F 7% ¥ 91,075,000 7t ) R AR F
EREZRITEBRZMETLIIH
239,260,000 (= & — — & :
241,961,0000%) > stEWMT :

141

2011
—_E——F
000
7:
Issued ordinary shares at beginning F#RFERS T
and end of year TER 243,354 243,354
Effect of shares repurchased in LRI FEEEZ
prior years (note 31(a)) TR
(K12 31(a) (1,393) (1,393)
Effect of shares repurchased in AEELE2ZBER
current year (note 31(a)) V2 (HEE31(a) (2,701) —
Weighted average number of FEZEBRMNE
ordinary shares for the year T8 239,260 241,961
Diluted (b) 8

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share equals to basic
(loss)/earnings per share for the years ended
30 June 2012 and 2011 because the potential
ordinary shares outstanding were anti-dilutive.

HREESERAREEEE - Eit
REB-—ZR-ZE-——SEZSRHEE
(B18) BAEERSRER(BR),

BH o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bk KMzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
BIZ 20124 6 A 30 HILFE

17. Fixed Assets

17. BIEEE

(oD (a) FEME
Medium term
leasehold Medium term
buildings leasehold Plant,
in Hong Kong buildings equipment,
and leasehold outside furniture and
improvements Hong Kong Construction motor vehicles
EERHAN FELMH in progress BE R Total
[ e b £ ERIE fRRRRE &
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$7000
TR BEFT BETR Vi 4o BEFR
Cost: FAfE:
At 1 July 2011 “E--Etf-A 62,384 760,080 22,654 744,036 1,589,154
Exchange adjustments ERa% - 6,646 313 8,861 15,820
Additions 25 - 2,667 81,626 11,983 96,276
Transferred from construction BRHRIR
in progress - 21 (6,594) 6,578 -
Disposals HE - (101) - (6,272) (6,373)
At 30 June 2012 ZZ-ZERB=TH 62,384 769,313 97,999 765,181 1,694,877
Accumulated depreciation: ZHHE:
At 1 July 2011 “E--Ftf-A 18,059 323,159 - 460,167 801,385
Exchange adjustments ERa% - 4,523 - 4,834 9,357
Charge for the year REENE 1,531 22,590 - 30,808 54,929
Written back on disposals HELRE - (24) - (4,086) (4,110)
At 30 June 2012 ZZ-ZERB=TH 19,590 350,248 - 491,723 861,561
Impairment: HE:
At 1 July 2011 and “E--FtB-BR
30 June 2012 “E-ZERBETA 33,112 142,082 - - 175,194
Net book value: FEFE:
At 30 June 2012 ZE-ZERBE1A 9,682 276,983 97,999 273,458 658,122
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

17. Fixed Assets (continued)

17. BIEEE»

(@) Group (continued) (a) AEEE)
Medium term
leasehold Medium term
buildings leasehold Plant,
in Hong Kong buidings equipment,
and leasehold outside fumiture and
improvements Hong Kong Construction  motor vehicles
FEREAN  ERUME in progress BRE %5 Total
BEREE GEY: 52 ERIE FiRAE it
HKS$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT 8T BEFT Vil-awn
Cost: BAE:
At 1 July 2010 “E-ZEL8-A 62,271 731,211 4999 698,727 1,497,268
Exchange adjustments Ejiag - 22,332 424 29,620 52,376
Additions N 113 4,282 34,982 11,569 50,946
Transferred from BRAEIR
construction in progress - 9,354 (17,751) 8,397 -
Disposals HE - (7,159) = (4.217) (11,436)
At 30 June 2011 ZE--F5xA=1H 62,384 760,080 22,654 744,036 1,689,154
Accumulated depreciation: ~ RiHiE :
At 1 July 2010 “E-ZEL8-A 16,539 291,912 - 4781 726,322
Exchange adjustments Eigg - 15,085 - 16,468 31,553
Charge for the year REENE 1520 21,392 - 28,786 51,698
Written back on disposals HEARE - (5,230) - (2,958) (8,188
At 30 June 2011 “E--ERAZTH 18,069 323,159 - 460,167 801,385
Impairment: e
At 1 July 2010 and “E-2EtF-AR
30 June 2011 Z2--£xA=1H 33,112 142,082 - - 175,104
Net book value: REFE:
At 30 June 2011 ZE--ERA=1H 11,213 294,839 22,654 283,869 612,575

At 30 June 2012, the net book value of fixed
assets held under finance leases amounted to

HK$901,000 (2011: HK$1,163,000).

R-B-—FXA=TA  UR
EHNEBENBEEEREF
B BB 901,000t (=ZF——

& B4 163,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

17. Fixed Assets (continued)

(a)

Group (continued)

In prior years, medium term leasehold building
in Hong Kong and the leasehold improvements
were written down to their recoverable amounts
and presented as revaluation in the notes to the
financial statements. The write down in prior
years were impairment in nature and thus should
have been recorded as impairment instead of
revaluation. In order to comply with accounting
policies as set out in note 2(h), the Group revised
the presentation of the movement of medium term
leasehold building in Hong Kong and the leasehold
improvements in the note above.

This adjustment had no impact to the Group’s
results for the years ended 30 June 2011 and
2012 and the Group’s and Company’s net assets
as at 1 July 2010, 30 June 2011 and 30 June
2012. The consolidated and company’s statements
of financial position as at 30 June 2010 are not
presented as there is no change to the reported
amounts.

17. BIEEE®

(a)

AERE(#E)

RUBFE  BBHHANE
FREGHOWRZEETHRE
B WRMBRRMERZIA
B o 1B 1E 5 B A9 MUR B R E 1
B Rt #AREBEMmFE
Efl - RETFHE20) AESF
B AEEC B R EXHER
FRPHENBTREECZDH
255K .

ERERARYEAEEBE T ——
FRZF-—_—_FARA=THLEF
ENEEUREAEBNARDTR
—Z-ZEHF+HA-A - =F——
FRA=+HEZ=ZZE—=-%5xA
=STHNEEFELESZE - A
REFRSBEWESH  HURS
N—Z—ZFXA=+BHNEE
B S AR 2R ] AR A B 09 B A AROR
*xo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BLZ 20126 30 HILFEE
- [— P
17. Fixed Assets (continued) 17. E Eéé(,{éﬁ)
(b) Company (b) FAF
Office
equipment,
furniture and
motor vehicles
WAERME
R RIAE
HK$’000
BT T
Cost: BRAME :
At 1 July 2011 —E——%tA—H 10,495
Additions R 919
Disposals HE (919)
M0 Mne20t2 ~®-=§Af=tA 10,495
Accumulated depreciation: ZIHE
At 1 July 2011 —E——%+tA—H 9,462
Charge for the year REEIE 489
Write back on disposals HEARE (919)
At 30 June 2012 —F-—=-%xA=tH 9,032
Net book value: BREFME
At 30 June 2012 —E-——F5-A=1H 1,463
Cost: BAE :
At 1 July 2010 —Z2-ZFF+tHA—H 9,905
Additions IR 598
Disposals HE (8)
At 30 June 2011 —E——HXAB=+H 10,495
Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE -
At 1 July 2010 —E-ZFtHA—H 9,017
Charge for the year KEERE 453
Write back on disposals HERREE (8)
_At30Jdune201t —2——%xA=tB 9,462
Net book value: BREFE -
At 30 June 2011 —E——%xXA=1+H 1,033
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BIZ 20124 6 A 30 HILFE
=
18. Leasehold Land 18. Gt #h
Group
FEE
2012 2011
—E—C_f —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT
At beginning of year F4] 91,109 80,337
Exchange adjustments R 1,108 3,263
Additions b 2,360 9,912
Amortisation s (2,648) (2,409)
At end of year FR 91,929 91,109
Current portion (included RENEE D (BIE
in debtors, deposits and REWERER - B2k
146 prepayments — note 24) TR — Mt 24) (2,648) (2,595)
Non-current portion FERENVEE D 89,281 88,514
The Group’s leasehold land held under medium-term REBFHHAYHEE L HEIE

lease comprises:

Group
FEE
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT BT
Leasehold land in Hong Kong BEEZHEELH 13,166 13,542
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong &B U 2HE b 78,763 77,567
91,929 91,109
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bk KMzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

B Z2012%6 530 HIEFE

19. Intangible Assets

19. & E

Group
AKEE
Goodwill Trademarks Total
i} it %
HK$°’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT BT
Cost: RAME
At 1 July 2011 —E——%+H—H 14,714 39,332 54,046
Additions R - 950 950
At 30 June 2012 :g—:i/_\ﬁ:‘ﬂfl 7777777 14,714 40,282 54,996
Accumulated amortisation: HET s
At 1 July 2011 —E£——%+H—H - 38,999 38,999
Charge for the year REEHEH - 113 113
_AtdJne20t2 “®-cFAB=tR - 112 30,112
Impairment: A
At 1 July 2011 and —E2——%tA-HBHEK
_ 0dwne20t2  Z®-=ExA=+A 12539 = 12,539
Net book value: IRERME -
At 30 June 2012 —E-——FXA=1+H 2,175 1,170 3,345
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EIE20126 H30 HILFE

19. Intangible Assets (continued)

190. B EE =

Group
REE
Goodwill Trademarks Total
GES [Eg e a5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
Cost: HAME -

At 1 July 2010 —E-TFE+H—H 14,714 39,311 54,025
Addition R — 21 21
AtOOJne2011 =$-——FABSHA 474 s 54046

Accumulated amortisation:  Z &ty ¢

At 1 July 2010 —E-FFtA—H — 38,888 38,888

Charge for the year REEEH — 111 111
AOOUne2011 =5 —FrpEtA - 8999 3999
Impairment: WA

At 1 July 2010 and —E-ZFtA—-BRK
ezt =E-—#XAZfA 1288 - 12,509
Net book value: BRTEFE

At 30 June 2011 —E——FXA=1+H 2,175 S8 2,508

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated income
statement.

Impairment test for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to edible
oil operations. The recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) is determined based on value-in-
use calculation. These calculation use cash flow projection
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using an estimated weighted
average growth rate which does not exceed the long-term
average growth rate for the business in which the CGU
operates. The cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax
discount rate which reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant CGU.

rEEzBEEACEREEFRESRER
ENTHRERAR -

BRMBZHSELEMZARENA
S

BEZRESHEBE MO - HER
CTELABUNIOBRESEEREERE
EifE - ZEBEEACRESAERAZ
EREEBUENOFUBEETE -
BBAFHMNRERENERNVER M
EYHEREXFTBBREELEMEE
EBHRPTHERR -BEREEA
BREAITRERNR  URRBBEESE
EENNERRRE -

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2012 | —ZZ2——FF3 BEE(FE)BR LT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 201246 530 A1 FE

20.

21.

Interest in Subsidiaries 20. B A S HELE
Company
AAT]
2012 2011
—E——-F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETFIT BEF T
Unlisted shares, at cost I EHIRDRAE 1,457,652 1,458,242
Impairment loss RIEEE (203,220) (203,220)
Investment in subsidiaries B RATKRE 1,254,432 1,255,022
Amounts due from subsidiaries W B AT RE 1,323,383 1,355,819
2,577,815 2,610,841
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASHI B A B FIE (1,557,550) (1,565,483)
1,020,265 1,045,358
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are interest-free, Bl EAHEATRENEBRE £
unsecured, have no fixed terms of repayment and will not K REEEEBERETER—F
be settled within one year. NEE o
Details of the subsidiaries are listed on pages 173 to 175. EMBATINERFINEI17TIERE
1758 o
- - — ﬁ -
Interest in a Jointly Controlled 21. EEEHIEERER
Entity
Group Company
XEE AAT

2012 2011 2012 2011
—e——5 RELEEI-T-— EESEES
Hks'000 [ETCHRE HK$000 [ETELRY
ENTr Belixeel E¥ T ek

Share of net assets EEFEEE 52,668 52,097 — =
Amount due (to)/from a FE(45) W st R

jointly controlled entity BB =8 (37,659) 10,241 2,023 3,000
The amount due (to)/from the jointly controlled entity is ZEMT) WHARESEERERE
interest-free, unsecured and repayable on demand. AR FRERNEGEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

21. Interest in a Jointly Controlled 21.

E ntlty (continued)

Details of the jointly controlled entity are as follows:

Name of company

AT BHE

Place of
incorporation/

operation

EEf B R

Percentage of
equity holding
indirectly

IRERFESE

HEEHEEER e

HEZEFEENENFIWT

Principal activities

ETEER

Evergreen Oils & Fats

Limited* (“Evergreen”) Hong Kong
RERBERARTRE]) HEHBE &S
* Company not audited by KPMG

Cayman Islands/

50

Dormant’

EFLLER

On 30 September 2011, the Group and the joint venture

partner entered into a mutual agreement to terminate
the Joint Venture Agreement effective 1 April 2012.
Upon termination of the Joint Venture Agreement, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, namely Lam Soon
Products Supply (Hong Kong) Company Limited, took up
the business in relation to the sales of products of the
Group previously carried out by Evergreen.

Summarised financial information on the jointly controlled

ZENRFAESHEMEBAE
%

R-ZZE-——FNA=1TH ~&EEH
BELENHBETREELLEE D
#FUYR-_B-—_FHA-REX-
BRIESEHR  FREZ2EWE
NE HEERUEEEB)ERLD
B AEHRFEBBRZERH

%o
=

BERAEEzHREZEFER A BEE

entity — Group’s effective interest:

Financial position

HRE — AEE2BRER

B E5R IR

2012 2011

—ET—-F —E——F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT BT T

Non-current assets FREBEE 3,692 7,476

Current assets REEE 49,858 128,472

Total assets BWEE 53,550 135,948

Current liabilities i I=KE (882) (83,851)
Total liabilites e\ @82 (83,851)

Net assets FEE 52,668 52,097
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bk KMzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 201246 530 A1 FE

21. Interest in a Jointly Controlled 21. HEI=HIEEEREL )
Entlty (continued)

Results E
2012 2011
—E—_%F —E2——F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT IT JBBEF T
Income A 291,415 354,974
Expenses -gunt (290,844) (857,210)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERN,(EE) 571 (2,236)
22. Available-for-sale Financial 22, Tt HEMNMFEE
Assets
151
Group Company
AEH F. /|

2012 2011 2012 2011
—e——r RESEEN - RESEE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
serr iaeel %77 ks

Listed equity securities,  EHiE%

at market value HiE
— in Hong Kong — /& 16 14 16 14
Others, at cost Hipp A& 787 787 = =
Impairment loss REEBE (280) (280) = =
I 507 . o =T
523 521 16 14
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EIE20126 H30 HILFE
23. Inventories 23. 58
(@) Inventories in consolidated statement of (a) MNEESHBERARZEESES
financial position comprise: 4
Group
FEE
2012 2011
—E——%F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
EEFT BT T
Raw materials B 361,405 638,475
Work in progress R m 95,042 25,282
Finished goods SR 96,596 136,918
Inventories in transit EEEm 16,181 7,802
Packing materials aER 14,608 12,439
Spare parts Bt 689 362
152
584,521 821,278
(b) The analysis of amount of inventories (b) HRBABIHZEES£BESH
recognised as an expense is as follows: L1 O
2012 2011
—F--fF —=E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
EETIT BT T
Carrying amount of inventories sold ~ EHEFES ZREE 2,505,994 2,058,866
Write- (back)/down of inventories EE(EE), RE (6,921) 7,752
2,499,073 2,066,618
The write-back of inventories was recognised E-ZE—-FXA=1TH FEEHEE
during the year ended 30 June 2012 as those | FRARZMFEUSHEEENH
inventories were subsequently sold at a price EEBHE -

higher than their carrying amounts.

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2012 | —Z2— =553 B (&FH8)ARLT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 201246 530 A1 FE

24. Debtors, Deposits and
Prepayments

All of the debtors, deposits and prepayments
expected to be recovered within one year.

24.

are

iR - HeRAM

FA

FRERVERN B RBANRIEME
—FRrlE -

Group Company
AEE ¥ /N

2012
k- < Ek-
HK$’000
EETIT

2011 2012 2011

T ity — T——F

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT WE-Lawall EXTT

Total trade debtors EWE SR AEEE 221,970 163,014 - —
Less: Allowance for doubtful & - RIZEIREMR
debts (note 24(b)) (K&t 24(b)) (675) (464) - =
221,295 162,550 - —
Other debtors, deposits and  HttEWIRF » #E& K
prepayments SERNES 63,708 158,016 644 620
Current portion of leasehold &t — REIEERH
land (note 18) (Kia 18) 2,648 2,595 - =
287,651 323,161 644 620
(@) Aging Analysis (a) RRESH
The aging of trade debtors (net of allowance for FEUNE SRR (F1E R IR ELE)
doubtful debts) as of the end of the reporting REIR ZEEE ST
period is as follows:
Group Company
AEE AATF

2012
—g——%
HK$’000
EETIT

2011 2012 2011

—F—F ity —T——F

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT WLl E%TT

0 — 3 months TE={E@AH 219,568 157,466 - —
4 — 6 months MZENEA 1,727 3,230 - =
Over 6 months 758 A A E - 1,854 — =
Total trade debtors JEUNE 5 R4 %5a 221,295 162,550 — =

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 5(a).

REEZ FERRERMIEES(@)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

24. Debtors, Deposits and
Prepayments (continueq)

(b)

Impairment of trade debtors

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors are
recorded using an allowance account unless the
Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is
written off against trade debtors directly (see note

2(K)().

The movements in the allowance for doubtful
debts during the year, including both specific and
collective loss components, are as follows:

24. FEWAR » I RTEM

;X&)
(b)  FEMEE SRRk i (EAS1E

EWE S ERRBERSE > —R%
EERRBEREFTHE MASE
ERAESEITRENES Y
o EWREBERT - HEREEE
SEEPREKRE SRR K
FE2(K)() °

AEEERERBEBBEAKD

DR BREEFESBHWOT ¢
Group Company
A5E AAT

2012 2011 2012 2011

b bl — T bt S — T —F
LG HK$'000 EELEY Il HK$'000

BETT BeiEerE EFTT Wik

At beginning of year F4) (464) (1,884) - —
(Recognition)/reversal of (¥R /B ERE

impairment loss K518 (236) 943 - —
Uncollectible amounts ]

written off ek 25 504 - =
Exchange adjustments B R - (27) - =
At end of year FR (675) (464) — =

At 30 June 2012, specific allowance for
doubtful debt amounted to HK$675,000 (2011:
HK$464,000).

RZEBE-—-FEXA=+H #E
RERBESIER B 675,000
JT(ZE — — & : ¥ #464,000
TT) °
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For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

24. Debtors, Deposits and 24,

Prepayments (continueq)
(c) Trade debtors that are not impaired
The aging analysis of trade debtors that are neither

individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired are as follows:

RARRR « e XM

;X&)

(c) RAFREBGEZEKES
ARR

TwEENNEREBEIREHF
A B EWE 5 IR AR
AHUT -

Group Company
FRME F28

2012
—E—-CF
Hk$’000
BB TFTT

Neither past due nor REE R RMERE

—F——F

2011
—F——4F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
EETT Wil EETT

2011

impaired i 208,776 158,861 — =
Past due for or less than BHIL A
3 months ZER=EA 12,346 2,643 - -
Past due for more than  BHIZA={E A
3 months but less than BV A+ =1 A
12 months 173 1,046 - =
221,295 162,550 - =

Trade debtors that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.

Trade debtors that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. Collaterals over
properties are obtained from certain customers.

KEHR TR EEE 2 R E
SR R MR EEER
BENES -

BHETEREZEZERES
RN BRZBEAKEARY
BREHENBIES - BUER
B HRAEGFEERWES AN
nE BEEEMGEEFIELRN
HEHRERERE  TRARELSE
RFEAZHRE - AEEEH
ETEFESERR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BIZ 20124 6 A 30 HILFE
F . = = P —
25. Derivative Financial 25. fTE&IT A
Instruments
The Group has entered into various commodity derivative NEBCIT LZEERITEILAESE -
contracts to manage its price exposures on soybean DERAEREEE T\ /)2 FrE
oil and wheat. Net fair value loss on derivative financial HEKRR ANEETESRIAENF
instruments of HK$993,000 (2011: HK$3,383,000) was BB BBH 003,000t (ZE——F : 8
charged to “other operating expenses” in the consolidated #3383,000) ' ER=—E——F KB
income statement during the year ended 30 June 2012. STHRERERANEMSE T HSP
HIBR ©
- Fefe o
26. Cash and Cash Equivalents 26. IRERINEEE
Group Company
AEE AATF
2012 2011 2012 2011
k- Lot B — T ——F kit i T ——4F
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
156 BTt WLl E5TiT WL
Cash on hand and at banks R&REITER 224,987 128,703 522 6,815
Time deposits EHER 226,130 41,876 - —
451,117 170,579 522 6,815
Cash at banks carries interest at floating rates based on RITERRBERS ARITERANERGTE
daily bank deposits rates. Time deposits are matured ZEBAZREENFE c EEEHRIIA=
within three months and earn interest at the respective BRAREE  IIREEHZEPESRE
short term deposit rates. BEERAI B o
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BLZ 20126 30 HILFEE
P
27. Bank Loans 27. SRITER
Group Company
XEE AAT
2012 2011 2012 2011
bt Bl — T —— &  fmbclemb il — T —— &
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EBEFr WL AT Wi Ea
Bank loans IRITEX 347,000 228,000 - —
The Group’s bank loans are denominated in HK$, FEREEZRITEREUBEESTE
unsecured and repayable on demand or within one year. IR RIRERS—FAE -
The Group’s bank loans carry variable rate of interest of AEBZRTERBZHINEER > &
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate (HIBOR) plus 1.2% to NFEBRITRAEREMEFEH1.2%
2.0% (2011: HIBOR plus 0.75%) per annum. B20% (ZF——F : EERITRER

28.

BINERZE0.75%)51 8 »

Creditors, Deposits Received 28. [EfTERR - ERE R
and Accruals FEst& A
The aging analysis of trade creditors is as follows: BNESRERINAOT :

Group Company

FEHE AFAT

2012 2011 2012 2011

et Potet B — T ——F bRt T ——
LG HK$'000 EGLEM  HK$'000
BETT WELEYA EETT Wil swm

0 — 3 months EZE={EA 202,595 232,909 — =
4 — 6 months Mz @B 696 2,785 — =
Total trade creditors ERE SRR 203,291 235,694 — =

Other creditors, deposits HMEMRR » B
received and accruals e RETER 128,012 110,042 13,322 12,750

331,303 345,736 13,322 12,750
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For the year ended 30 June 2012
BIZ 20124 6 A 30 HILFE

29. Other Current Liabilities

29. HihREAE

Group Company
FEH A

2012 2011 2012 2011

i St R — T —— iy g — T ——F
LLCK M HK$'000 QGLCK M HK$'000
BT WLl EETr WL e

Obligations under finance FEREMN
leases aE 256 270 — =
Others Hith - 12 — =
256 282 - —

30. Other Non-current Liabilities

158

30. HihERENAR

Group Company
FRE FA5

2012 2011 2012 2011
bt B TR — — 4 fembc el T — —4F
FICHON  HKS'000 BELECHON  HK$S'000
BETT Wi EETT G R

Obligations under finance REEEN
leases af&
— After one year but — —F&ZE
within two years MEREZRE 148 241 - —
— After two years but — MEERZE
within five years TFEREER 49 180 - =
197 421 — —
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B2 20126 H30 HILFE

31. Share Capital

31. Ig&

(a) Authorised and issued share capital (a) EERIE V.
Number of Nominal
shares value
BHEE B mEE
‘000 HK$’000
Fhig BT
Authorised: EERERE
At 30 June 2011 and at RIE——FXA=1+HRK
30 June 2012, ordinary —E-——HFXB=1+H "
shares of HK$1 each BREBEREBE 1T 300,000 300,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHERE :
At 30 June 2011 and at R-E——FXA=1THEK
30 June 2012, ordinary —E-—_HFXAB=1+H8H"
shares of HK$1 each BREBRBE 1T 243,354 243,354

During the year, the Group repurchased its

own

ordinary shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong

Kong Limited for the purpose of satisfying the

exercise of share options granted under the

Group’s share option scheme as follows:

REE > RRECETERET
WATEWIRSE - AREIZBRE
FFEICBEEEBBA RS E
FENEBERIT

Number of
shares Highest price Lowest price Aggregate
Month/year repurchased paid per share paid per share price paid
R}/ & fEER G EE BREEEE BRREER ERftREEE
HK$ HK$ HK$’000
JEBE JEHE BT T
October 2011 3,601,000 4.64 4.30 15,553

The considerations of the repurchased shares

were

charged to ESOP reserve and governed by Section

49H of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

As at 30 June 2012, there were 4,994,000 (2011:
1,398,000) ordinary shares acquired and held by

the Group under the ESOP reserve.

BEBLARROAHNARTE - BBR:D
NEELHKTETHBREDRRE -

RZZE-—=—FEXA=+H ' xEER
ETEREIFZREPEEZTER
4,994,000 I (= & — — £ : 1,393,000

BR) e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

31. Share Capltal (continued)

(b)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products
and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure by
reviewing its equity-debt ratio and cashflow
requirements, taking into account of its future
financial obligations and commitments. For this
purpose, the Group defines equity-debt ratio as the
ratio of the equity attributable to shareholders of
the Company to net debt. Net debt comprises total
bank borrowings less cash and short term funds.

31. &)

(b)

BEXxER

AEEEREANEERRR
RESBEEAHFELE M
BRARRREHEHRREAE R =
HEESREE BBREMK
RERELERRKFEABHE
B UREBRSERAESGHE
5 o

FEEEBRERHEREREBR
Mgk EE  ULERSKRRE
HBIERT TREFE2ESEEK
FHRHEFNERNRRTRNES
RRE2EREFE - WEEL
BRENS(CHERRBELR
o

AEBEUEREBER - BER
FERREZRERNYBEE ERE
FEERERELAREB - ER
bt AEEKEFRELRRE
RERARREEEZEFEEG
MR- FREEEBAERR X
REREHES -
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For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

31. Share Capltal (continued)

(b) Capital management (continued)

31.

The equity-debt ratios at 30 June 2012 and 2011

are as follows:

;. N
(b) BEXEHE

R=F-—=R=F——FXA

ZtHZEXREELERNT:
Group Company
XEE AAT]

2012
—E——%
HK$°000
EEFIT

2011 2012 2011
ZE——F [ igmess T ——F
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT WL awall E%TT

Bank loans repayable —FREER
within 1 year HISR1TE R 347,000 228,000 — =
Less: Cash and cash B BRER
equivalents BEEH (451,117)  (170,579) (522) (6,815)
Net (liquid funds)/debt F(REBER),
=K (104,117) 57,421 (522) (6,815)
Equity attributable to /N
shareholders of the IR R PEL
Company % 1,407,217 1,474,144 1,011,611 1,044,090
Equity-debt ratio EXRBELE 100:0 96:4 100:0 100:0
0 i . s
32. Equity Settled Share-Based 2. IRAEEHLIRGB A

Transactions

The Company’s share option scheme (“Share Option

Scheme”) was adopted by the shareholders on 23 May

2003 and amended and approved by the shareholders

at the extraordinary general meeting on 18 April 2006

(“Date of Approval”). The amendments to the rules of the

Share Option Scheme on the Date of Approval by the

shareholders was to, among others, allow grant of options

(“Options”) over newly issued shares and/or transfer of

existing shares by a trust of Share Option Scheme (the

“Trust”) which established between the Company and

a trustee of the Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary of the

Group, and to align the rules under Chapter 17 of the

Listing Rules.

EHHR 5

RO ZBRETE(TBRESE DR
—EE=FREA-t=HERFRMER
R-ZZERENA+NBTHEBRED
REREHAE EREAEBET - B
HAEBH  RBRETERAZZEE
FICERRzHE  HPBEEHFREH
BRADNTHBITROR REBHE
BREGSERNER(EEDETEDR
NAEERZEETEZZTEARRL
MEAABREBZ22ENBAR)E
ERERDBRE(EBRE]D UK
BIE EHRBE 17 EHRAMELET -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#53R R sE

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EIE20126 H30 HILFE

32. Equity Settled Share-Based 2. RRAGHBLUERGB S

Transactions (continued)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to motivate
the employees and directors of the Group and the
employees of associated companies (“Eligible Employee”)
and to allow them to participate in the growth of the
Company.

The total number of shares which may be issued and/
or transferred by the Trust upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company at the Date of Approval of the Share
Option Scheme. The maximum entitlement for any Eligible
Employee in respect of the total number of shares issued
and to be issued upon exercise of options granted and to
be granted in any 12 months period does not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue.

The option price per share upon exercise of any share
option will be determined by the directors upon the grant
of share option. It will not be less than the greatest of (a)
the average closing price of a share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the day of offer
of such a share option; (b) the closing price of a share as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on
the day of offer of such a share option, which must be a

business day; and (c) the nominal value of a share.

A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on
acceptance of the shares option within 21 days inclusive
of and from the date of making such offer.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of 10 years commencing on 23 May 2003.

As at 1 July 2011, there were 18,150,000 outstanding
share options pursuant to the Share Option Scheme of
the Company. During the year, 8,000,000 share options
granted to the then Group Managing Director and
certain eligible employees were lapsed. The number of
outstanding options was 10,150,000 as at 30 June 2012.

HBEBX S =)

ZEREFIEENBEERN ZEEM
ESURBEARACRBE(SERE
Bl ERETVBEAQNTZHE -

RIEBBRESETEATFTREZHAEE
PRFERS  AIEITR,EBHRETER
ZROBE EHAEEHBRES
SHERMALNACRITROBHZ
10% > RMEM+=EABBEASER
BERTEERERETREZBRE
ZEBRTRETRITRO 2B &Z
TRBBRCBITROZ1% -

RITEENBRE  SERRODBES
ESENREKER  BREFIR
(LUBEERE) () RERHZBREZ
AR R EEERBR T8 RARERMN
BRz8RBROFHRTE S b)RHZ
BREER(XAREXRBXFzE
AREXRMERNZBRROETER ()
BREE -

HRH RSB -t —AA - ERARD
BREANNEREIT -

BRESEEXRB+E BT =F
BERA=-t=H®8EM -

R-ZZE——FtA—8 REEXLQT
BRESTE HRTEZBEREHE
#18,150,000° RAFE R » & F Al
REBESHALERETEERKEES
$#£8,000,000 2 BEREE XM - R=F
——FXA=1+H BRITEZBERE
2/8 A10,150,000 °
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For the year ended 30 June 2012
ElE20126 H30 HILFE

32. Equity Settled Share-Based
Transactions (continueq)

The Board Remuneration Committee of the Company shall
determine at its discretion, the extent of achievement of
the performance targets and contribution criteria set out
for that period, and decide on the vesting of the Options
and the number of shares comprised in the vested
Options.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants
are as follows:

32. FBRAEEHILIRKA

HEBEHX S =)

ESEVNZEERERZMBNAE
BzBRERRBERER  REBRE
ZEBRERERREES ZROH
B o

(a) REZEHRMEGIDT :

Number of Contractual
instruments Exercisable period life of options
fEIRERE o] {7 {SE R MERES

Options granted

to a director:

BRERT-—EES

— 26 August 2010 2,430,000 () 40% — Within 6 months 3.85 years

- RZE-ZEFNAZ+XAH from vesting date on 3.85F

30 June 2014
EE-—NWEAB=1H
MEBAESERR

(i) 40% — Within 6 months 4.85 years
after 1 year from 4.85%F
vesting date on

30 June 2014
E-E-MFEARA=1H
WEBRE—FERE

AR

(i) 20% — Within 6 months 5.85 years
after 2 years from 5.85F
vesting date on

30 June 2014

EZE—MNFEASA=1+H

MRS AR - FENE

AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

B2 20126 H30 HILFE
32. Equity Settled Share-Based 32. EBRAEGEHI LUK A
Transactions (continued) E%qu%(%‘g
(@) The terms and conditions of the grants (a) TBREZEFFEEWT : (&)
are as follows: (continued)
Number of Contractual
instruments Exercisable period life of options
REREHE o] 7 {E B RBRES N
— 16 November 2010 3,170,000 (i) 40% — Within 6 months 3.62 years
— R=ZE2E-ZF+—-F+xH from vesting date on 3.62F

30 June 2014
E-Z-HmEXA=1H
MEREBEAEAR

(i) 40% — Within 6 months 4.62 years
after 1 year from vesting 4.62 £
date on 30 June 2014
E-ZE-NFEARA=+H
NEEBRE—FE
~NMEAR

(i) 20% — Within 6 months 5.62 years
after 2 years from 5.62 F
vesting date on
30 June 2014
E-E-WMFEARA=1H
WEBRB_FE

164

ANMEAR
Options granted to employees:
BRERTET :
— 26 August 2010 13,400,000 (i) 40% — Within 6 months 3.85 years
—R=ZZE-ZFNA=+7<H from vesting date on 3.85F

30 June 2014
E-E—NEXAB=1+H
KB REANERRA

(i) 40% — Within 6 months 4.85 years
after 1 year from 4.85%F
vesting date on
30 June 2014
E-ZE-NFEARA=+H
WEBHE—FE
NMEAR

(i) 20% — Within 6 months 5.85 years
after 2 years from 5.85F
vesting date on
30 June 2014
E-E-WmFEANA=1H
HEBHE-FE
~MEAR

Total share options granted 19,000,000
RIDERER TEH
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ElE20126 H30 HILFE
32. Equity Settled Share-Based 32. MIRAEHR LR E
Transactions (ontinued) BRI B
(b) The number and weighted average (b) BREBIREMEE RMESE
exercise prices of share options are as HWITEENT :
follows:
2011
—T--F —T——F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number
price options price  of options
IHEE B R A I B
TEE g = TE(E Qe
HK$ ’000 HK$ ‘000
B F B +
Outstanding at the REDEREITHE
beginning of the year 6.86 18,150 — — 165
Granted during the year RERFTH - - 6.86 19,000
Lapsed during the year ~ RERKXX 6.86 (8,000) 6.86 (850)
Outstanding at the end  FAFE 4 B i
of the year RFITHE 6.86 10,150 6.86 18,150
Exercisable at the end REEBITE
of the year = = — —
The options outstanding at 30 June 2012 had an RZB——FEXA=1+RHEKRT
exercise price of HK$6.86 (2011: HK$6.86) and a ERERETEEASEY6.86 T
weighted average remaining contractual life of 2.8 (ZEBE——F . B¥e686mT) R
years (2011: 3.8 years). MEFHRGBENBE-SNE

(ZB——F =Y N\F) o
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For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

32. Equity Settled Share-Based
Transactions (continued)

(c)

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on Black-Scholes
model. The contractual life of the share option is
used as an input into this model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

32. E‘:ﬂﬁ;ﬁ *%E’Jl«lﬂ&
(c) RipEBIRENAREFREE

EERTEREERURENLD
RERSEMRTHENARE
2 ORERMEREAAE
WEETRREBEMM IR — &8
Hr 18R - WABRENEGHOH
PRAEZER NI AZSE o

Fair value at measurement date REERZAARE

Share price ’RE

Exercise price T1EE

Expected volatility TEHR i@

Option life BE PR 1 F B

Expected dividend yield TEHEIRR B %

Risk free rate (based on EERRE(RE
Exchange Fund Note) HMNEESERE)

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility (calculated based on the weighted average
remaining life of the share options), adjusted for
any expected changes to future volatility based on
publicly available information. Expected dividends
are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

RO ERENAEREBR
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$ ~#&%0.009- HKS$ B¥0.711-
0.563 7T 0.809 7T
HK$ ~#¥3.95t HKS$ 867
HKS$ ~##6.86T HK$, E%6.867T
24.97% - 19.16%
37.16%
2.00 years - 3.62 years —
4.00 years 5.85 years
2.00 £ - 3.62F -
4.00 5 5.85F
2.4% 2.4%
0.78% — 1.30% 0.76%

FEHRE DR BB EREMEE
(FHFE T3R5 IR 10 88 IR A 10 hn 48
FEREGH)  ARBEDMEM
Y B R R ROR IR TR B A
HAZ - FHREDBREBER
EMEE - EX@Wm AEBRRRA
HRRERTERNEATE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
ElE20126 H30 HILFE

33. Reserves

33. &

Company AAT
Investment Share
Share  revaluation option General Revenue
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
Rh#E REERkEE  BRERE - Wi L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK8'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BRI
At 1 July 2010 ZE-EFtA-H 429,423 17 - 50,000 361,657 841,097
Change in fair value of ALENTEEEZ
avallable-for-sale financial assets ~~ AREEF - 1 - = = 1
Equity settled share-based ERAGENURDAER
fransactions R 5 - - 2,568 - 17 2,685
Loss for the year (note 14) REEER(E14) = = = = [4111) [4111)
200910 final dvidend proposed ~ H=EEn/-B&
and paid RERE = - - - (24,335) (24,335)
Current year nterim dividend NREERHRE
declared and paid - - - - (14,601) (14,601)
At 30 June 2011 ZE-—-%xA=1H 429,423 18 2,568 50,000 318,727 800,736
At 1 July 2011 ZE--Etf-H 429,423 18 2,568 50,000 318,727 800,736
Change in fair value of avallable-for- ~ WHHENSHEEZ
sale financial assets MEES - (17) = = = (17)
Equity setfled share-based BRAEEHURDBER
transactions ) - - (1,770) - - (1,770)
Loss for the year (note 14) REEERMH 14) - - - - (6,357) (6,357)
201011 final dividend proposed ~ H=F-B/--%
and paid FHRe - - - - (24,335) (24,335)
At 30 June 2012 ZE-ZEXB=TH 429,423 1 798 50,000 288,035 768,257
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
EIE20126 H30 HILFE

33. Reserves (continued)

Nature and purpose of reserves:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
is governed by Sections 48B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Surplus reserves

Surplus reserves include statutory surplus reserve
and statutory public welfare fund.

In accordance with Accounting Regulations
for Business Enterprises, foreign investment
enterprises in Mainland China are required to
transfer at least 10% of their profit after taxation, as
determined under accounting principles generally
accepted in the PRC (“PRC GAAP”) to the statutory
surplus reserve until the balance of the reserve is

equal to 50% of their registered capital.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of the
available-for-sale financial assets held at the end of
the reporting period and is dealt with in accordance

with the accounting policies in note 2(f).

ESOP reserve

The ESOP reserve represents the purchase
consideration for issued shares of the Company
acquired for the purpose of satisfying the exercise
of share options granted under the Company’s
Share Option Scheme. The application of the ESOP
reserve is governed by Section 49H of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance.

33. =

EB2MERAR

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Rzt it (R

BROBERZERDZEBRD
RIGRAGI)EE 48BIRFTEEE o

mERfHEE

BHRREBEEELIERHBABETR
EEREE e

RB(EESTHE) - EHEK
BEHIBRECEIAERIR
10% (P EARL MBI S5
ZRDETE RS R E AR
EREBLES  HEZRENES
BREEREME AR 50% BIE

REEHHEE

REEMRFREERNBREEN
AHEENMBEEZ DA RER
BHREFE ARBEME20)
PRtz 85t BURMEHE

EIBEHRME

ETERESRFBEEER/RE
REMET  ATEBREMR
BRESEZBARRTAEEHTR
MzBERE  ZHEEIEAR
& B F R B ) 58 49H R Fi &2

(=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
B2 20126 H30 HILFE

33. Reserves (continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Share option reserve

Share option reserve comprises the fair value of
equity settled share based transactions and is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policies in
note 2(q)(ii).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note 2(u).

General reserve

The general reserve has been set up by transfer
of revenue reserve according to resolutions of the
Board of directors.

Revenue reserve

The distributable reserve of the Company at 30
June 2012 amounted to HK$288,035,000 (2011:
HK$318,727,000). After the end of the reporting
period, the directors proposed a final dividend of
HK$0.08 per ordinary share (2011: HK$0.10 per
ordinary share), amounting to HK$19,468,000
(2011: HK$24,335,000). The dividend has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

33. =

R tEfEA

BREEEERTFEIZEBR
EHAARE ZEERBHE
2(q)(i) FTE 2 ST EER M RE -

BE 5t et e

ERFERERTETBUINE
BOMBHRRMEEZERLE
B BB REM T2 MEZ
SERTBEMEE

— i

—RFBERESERUAFER
EZ W EERA -

W 2 fet 8

AARR=_ZE—=—FXA=+H
2 W 3 1% 18 & 78 15 288,035,000
TL(=Z——4F : 8% 318,727,000
) REIKR#%Z ESSHRIRE
ZAREREASREBRBY
008 (=FE——F: §RE]
RAB®0107T)  AEBEABY
19,468,000 t(= & — —F : /&
#524,335,000 7T ) ° #% B F IF &
REBRERAEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

B E2012F6 530 HILFE
34. Capital Commitments 34. %iEIEH
(@)  The Group had the following commitments not @ AREREREUTEIEERR
provided for in the financial statements at the end TEMBmMRPIELRE

of the reporting period:

Group

A EH
2012 2011
—F--F —2——F
HK$°000 HK$’000
ERFiT BEFTT

Authorised capital expenditure ~ BHL/EW B F] A2 E AR
and contracted for B 74,429 42,804

Authorised capital expenditure ~ B H#EEBRITHZER

but not contracted for B X 88,478 150,397
170 _

(b) At 30 June 2012, the Group had several non- (b) RZE—ZFEXAB=+H' K
cancellable purchase orders for raw materials with SEEMERTZERT AR
its suppliers with an amount of HK$274,425,000 HEHNHREBITE sEABY
(2011: HK$327,161,000). 274,425,000t (=& —— : B

327,161,0007%) °©

35. Contingent Liabilites 35. {AREE
Up to 30 June 2012, the IRD has issued protective BE—Z——FxA=1+RH ' F8HK
assessments for the years of assessment 2003/04, BM—=F= 2N - —Z2FN EH
2004/05 and 2005/06 to Evergreen, in respect of which E=FER ENEREE BHEEH
tax reserve certificates amounted to HK$13,600,000 were BHIEIMREMEEL  c RECHUEBA
purchased. Evergreen has objected to these protective 5 LB 13,600,000 it 7 A B4R
assessments. U EREERESRERY -
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36. Related Party Transactions

The Group had the following material transactions with its
related parties during the year:

Related party Nature of transactions

FREE T Z5HE
Evergreen Purchases of small package oil
RE BE/BEERMH

Sales of aroma oil

BRHHE

Bottling and refinery income for

small package oil

PREERMEERBREA

Management fee income
EEBERA

Royalties received for the use

of trademarks

EIRE A REE WA

Sales of cleaning products

ARAmEE

Purchases of fixed assets and

intangible assets

BEETEENRENEE

GOMC/GGMC
EEEXH

Hong Leong Insurance (Asia) Ltd. |nsurance fee expenses

LR (M) BRDH REEE X H

Other related party transactions are also disclosed in
notes 11 and 21.

Note:

A master service agreement was entered into between the
Company and GuolLine Group Management Co. Limited
(“GGMC”) together with GOMC Limited (“GOMC”) (collectively
known as the “Service Providers”), subsidiaries of Hong
Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad (“HLCM”), the Company’s
ultimate holding company, on 30 June 2008 for the provision of
management services to the Group by the Service Providers for a
term of three years from 1 July 2008. The agreement expired on
30 June 2011.

Another master service agreement was entered into between
the Company and Service Providers, on 30 June 2011 for the
provision of management services to the Group by the Service
Providers for a term of three years from 1 July 2011.

Management fee expenses (note)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR R Mzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012
ElE20126 H30 HILFE

BARE B 5

AEERAEEEUTERNBERLS X
5

2011
—E——F

HK$’000

BT T

81,251 2,872
20,224 24,943
36,663 55,743
1,000 2,000
7,145 12,417
25 40
3,301 —
600 3,999
763 781

M1 R21 T BREHMERTRS -

BfeE -

R-ZZEENFAA=1+TH AAFHEMR
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad
(THLCMD) B Kt B 2 & » Guoline Group
Management Co. Limited ([GGMC]) &
GOMC Limited (TGOMC) (#t#8[ AR5 FE
Bl BEFHESER-—ZZENFLtA—H
BAREERBAP=F2EERE T
— M RBHE - NERBHBRER = ——F
RA=TBEE -

RZZE——FXRA=+H  NQFHERZEM
EE > AAEER#EBAE-ZE——FtHA—H
BEH="FEERE  FTLR —HREH
& o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&iR Rzt

For the year ended 30 June 2012

BIZ 20124 6 A 30 HILFE
: e = L\ =

37. Immediate and Ultimate 37. EBRRZRERAT]
Holding Company
At 30 June 2012, the directors consider the immediate EEegsnN_-_=E—_—&~A=+H
holding company to be GuoLine International Limited, BBk A8 A Guoline International
which is incorporated in Bermuda and ultimate holding Limited» —BERBHFEZMRLZA
company of the Group to be HLCM, which is incorporated A MAKEBEZAERDTHBHLCM
in Malaysia. These entities do not produce financial —BERERARFMALZAFT  BL
statements available for public use. R EMEHRRAMAIRSES -
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SUBSIDIARIES [t BAE]

At 30 June 2012
201246 530 H

The following list contains particulars of principal subsidiaries at

REB-—ZFAAZTHEIEMNBRARARE

30 June 2012: W
Place of
incorporation/ Effective
Issued and fully establishment percentage of
Name of company paid up capital and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
ATEH ERTRYEZRE AR RESHE RiERFEML  EEER Wi
Group  Company
158 x4
Asian Dragon Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Licensee of factory canteen
BT B IRREYRER
Bio Trading Limited US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 — Bulk trading of edible oils
1£7 ABEERNE ARRABES
Gladko Industries Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
EREFERAT BT B REER
Global Flour Trader Limited HK$10,000 Hong Kong 100 — Trading of flour products
RFENEZERAR 710,000 B BHERES
Guangzhou Lam Soon Homecare ~ HK$21,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Products Limited 7% 21,000,000 of China cleaning products
ENEIEEZARERAR PEARLAE BREREERES
Hong Kong Flour Mills Limited Ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 — Trading of bran, provision of
BEERHERAT HK$100,000 Bk trucks rental service and
Deferred shares investment holding
HK$10,000,000 ERE5 EEHERRE
ZBMRE% 100,000 7T 2R
JETERRE% 10,000,000 T
Jiangsu Lam Soon Flour Mills US$5,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 5,000,000% 7 of China flour products
TEERERERAR hEARLNE BRERLERES
Jiangsu Lam Soon Food US$10,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 10,000,000 % 7 of China flour products
THBEIERRARAF PEARLAE BREREERES
Lam Soon (China) Holdings US$1 British Virgin Islands/ 100 — Investment holding
Company Limited 1%7 Hong Kong RERR
ABAARBE /BB
Lam Soon Cleaning & Caring HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Trading of cleaning products
Laboratories (Hong Kong) BT BA E2ERES
Company Limited
BIEEREERE (B BRAR
Lam Soon Edible Oils Company ~ US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
Limited 1%7 ABEERNS REER
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SUBSIDIARIES [t B2AE]

At 30 June 2012
20126 H30H
Place of
incorporation/ Effective
Issued and fully establishment percentage of
Name of company paid up capital and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
yGE ERTRERZRE dfREEHE REFAT R TEER i
Group  Company
-y 10 x4q
Lam Soon Food Industries (BYl) ~ HK$11,858,415 British Virgin Islands 100 —  Investment holding
Limited BH 11,858 41570 ABEERNE REER
Lam Soon Food Industries Ordinary shares Bermuda/Hong Kong 100 100  Investment holding
Limited HK83,228,315 BRE/BR RELZR
Convertible preference
shares HK$25,000,000
LA 83,228,315
ERELR
¥ 25,000,000 7T
Lam Soon Food Supply Ordinary shares Hong Kong 100 —  Provision of warehousing and
Company Limited HK$1,000 BH logistics services
BERREEBRAR Deferred shares RURERMRRE
HK$500,000
ZRRBE1,0007
IESERR %% 500,000 T
Lam Soon Food Supply (Macau) ~ MOP$25,000 Macau 100 — Trading of flour, edible oils and
Company Limited TP 25,000 7T BF cleaning products
HIERmAE(RM)BRAR B eRRREZERES
Lam Soon International Limited ~ US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 —  Investment holding
12 RBERREE REER
Lam Soon (Pan Yu) Industries HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
Company Limited BT BE RERR
HEE(EE) IE£ERAF
Lam Soon Products Supply HK$1,000,000 Hong Kong 100 — Trading of flour, edible ails and
(Hong Kong) Company 781,000,000 5E cleaning products
Limited (formerly known as B RRAAREZERES
Hong Kong Flourtech Limited)
BIEERAE(EE)ERAR
(AIBRESRRERAR)
Lam Soon Realty Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Property holding
HIEERRAF BT B NERE
Lam Soon (Shandong) Food US$10,113,100 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 10,113,100 %7t of China flour products
BIR(LR) RRERAR HEARLAE BHEREERES
Lam Soon (Sichuan) Food US$7,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 7,000,000 & 7T of China flour products
HEmIRRERAR HEARLNE BHEREERES
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SUBSIDIARIES [t BAE]

At 30 June 2012
R2012F6 HA30H
Place of
incorporation/ Effective
Issued and fully establishment percentage of
Name of company paid up capital and operation equity holding Principal activity Notes
AFER ERTRATZRE AR REEHE REREENL  IEEH i+
Group  Company
-y 10 x4q
Lam Soon Silos Investments HK$2 Hong Kong 100 — Investment holding
Limited it ¥ &8 REER
HEFEREBRAR
Lam Soon Systems Limited HK$2 Hong Kong 100 —  Provision of internet marketing
HIEZGERAF BT BB senvices
REBRETZERRY
Lam Soon Trademark Limited Us$2 Cook Islands/Hong Kong 100 —  Trademark holding
2%T MREB/EE BERE
LS Golden Oils & Fats Limited “A” ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 100 — Investment holding
HK$185,000,000 ABEERES RER
“B" ordinary shares
HK$9,900,000
“C” ordinary shares
HK$5,100,000
[AJEER
7% 185,000,000
[BIEER
7#9,000,000 7
[CIEER
78%#5,100,000 7T
Richly Choice Development US$1 British Virgin Islands 100 100  Provision of trustee services
(PTC) Limited E ABERARES PRI ETERRAS
Shekou Lam Soon Flour Mills US$27,500,000 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company Limited 27,500,000 %7 of China flour products
EOFEEERERAR EARLAE BHEREERES
Shekou Lam Soon Silo US$9,500,000 The People’s Republic 100 —  Provision of silo facilities N1
Company Limited 9,500,000 %7 of China REERRE
EOBEERERAR hEARLAE
Shenzhen Lam Soon Edible Oils  US$12,000,000 The People’s Republic 100 — Manufacturing and trading of N1
Company, Limited 12,000,000 % 7 of China edible oils
AR EERA A PEARLAE RABEERES
Swamex Food Service Limited HK$400,000 Hong Kong 100 100 Trading of edible oils products
EXRRERAF 78 ¥ 400,000 7T B RABERES
Note: Vorzam
N1 The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-owned-foreign N1 ZEWBARIEPTEAREMNBEEEZUIE

companies under PRC Laws.

BENREHRAM -
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5-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY A S FEHIE

The summaries of results, assets and liabilities of the Group and AEEBTHEFREENXE SEKERE
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company for the last RAEQNBRREEERBBMENT ¢
five financial years are as follows:

2010 2009 2008
—T-%F —TTLE —BENE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BEEET EBEEET EEEET

Results ES

Turnover B 2,889 2,510 2,193 2,072 2,094

Operating profit before RMBRAE L H

interest, taxation, HE - TER
depreciation and BN E
amortisation Y 29 167 185 133 175
(Loss)/profit ¥ NG
176 attributable to equity (R (E5.)
shareholders of the Y
Company (36) 91 122 79 118

Assets and liabilities SEERER

Non-current assets FRBEE 819 757 733 634 645
Net current assets BARABEE 599 729 667 674 629
Non-current liabilities FREBEE — (1) (1) (1) 2)
Non-controlling B ER

interests (11) (11) (11) (11) (17)
Equity attributable to ¥

shareholders of the PR R

Company = 1,407 1,474 1,388 1,296 1,255

Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited Annual Report 2012 | —Z——5 %% &IE(EB)EBRAT



Lam Soon Premier Brands

MR = R R
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B FREEHRERE
HONG KONG HONG KONG
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® B A& ®B ¥ R

BEBRZETERME
Hong Kong Top Brand Ten Year
Achievement Award
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